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P.D. No. 1445

ALICIA B. MORI,

Municipal Mayar,

STANLEY E. MORI,
Municipal Mayar,

JOSE G. BASOC

Municipal Vice-Mavor

DARIUS O. PELAYO,
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Revenue Collector/ Procurement Officer Designate
(All) of the Local Government Unit af
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Econg, J:

The prosecution charged Alicia B, Mori, then Municipal
Mayor, Stanley E. Mori, the incumbent Municipal Mayor,
Jason G. Basoc, Municipal Vice-Mayor, Darius Pelayo vy
Ortiza, Municipal Accountant, Calixto O. Ladao, Municipal
Budget Officer, Gerardo F. Aguimod, Municipal Treasurer,
and Jaime D. Labasano, then Municipal Treasurer, all of the
Local Government of the Municipality of Caraga, Davao
Oriental, and Juanita G. Casquejo, private individual, of
violation of Section 3f{e) of R.A. No. 3019, under the following
Informations:!

(5B-11-CREM-0235)

That on 31 July 19949, prior or subsequent thereto, in
the Mumnicipality of Caraga, Davao Oriental, Philippines, and
within the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court, the above-
named accused, who are public officers, Alicia Mori y
Benitez, being then Municipal Mayor, Stanley Mori y Ege,
the incumbent Municipal Mayver, Darius Pelayo y Ortiza,
Municipal Accountant, Calixto 0. Ladao, Municipal Budget
Otheer, Gerardo Aguimod y Ferrando, Municipal Treasurer,
and Jaime Labasano y Dasalia. then Municipal Treasurer,
all of the Municipality of Caraga, Davao Oriental, while in the
performance of their official functions, taking advantape of
their official positions, and committing the crime in relation
to their office. conspiring and confederating with each other,
through manifest partiality, evident bad faith, or gross
incxcusable  negligence, did then and there willfully,
unlawfully, and criminally authorize, approve, grant,
process, and release the retirement gratuity of Calixto O.
Ladao on 31 July 1999 in the amount of Four Hundred
Seventy-5ix Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos and

''Reconds; Vol 1,p. 1.
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Thirty-Five Centavos (P476,463.35), knowing fully well that
he is not entitled thereto since he was recalled from service
on 27 July 1999 as reflected in the Recall Order, accused
public officers subsequently reneged on their duties to
demand, collect, and ask for a refund of the said amouni
from Calixto O. Ladao, as he is not entitled to it and despite
the fact that later, a recommendation from the Sangguniang
Bayan (3B] Committee Report in October 2001, and a (SH)
Resolution No. 54, Series of 2003 were issued that ordered
Calixto O. Ladao to refund the said amount, and in spite of
the [act that Calixto ©. Ladao failed to refund the said
amount, he was issued a clearance dated 06 January 2003,
and this was compounded by the accused's failure to furnish
the GSIS with the record of his collected advance retirement
benefits in 1999, which is required under the law, there by
public respondents made it easy for Calixto O. Ladao to
collect his retirement pay with GSI3 in January 2003, thus,
causing undue injury to the government and public interest
in the amount of Four Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Four
Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos and Thirty Five Centavos
(P476,463.35),

Contrary to Law_?

(SB-11-CRM-0236)

That on 19 January 2001 to 29 January 2001, and 21
February 2001, prior or subsequent thereto, in the
Municipality of Caraga, Davac Oriental, Philippines, and
within the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court, the above-
named accused, who are public officers, Alieia Mori y
Benitez, being then Municipal Mayor, Darius Pelayo v
Ortiza, Municipal Accountant, Calinte 0. Ladao, Munictpal
Budget Officer, Gerardo Aguimod y Ferrando, Municipal
Treasurer, all of the Municipality of Caraga, Davao Oriental,
while in the performance of their official functions, taking
advantage of their official positions, and committing the
crime in relation to their office through manifest partiality
evident bad faith or gross inexcusable negligence, conspiring
and confederating with each other and together with private
respondent Juanita G. Casquejo, Proprictor of Louievian
Mercantile, did then and there willlully, unlawlully and
criminally cause undue injury to the Government by
disbursing public funds in the total amount of Four
Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos (P4,463.00)
as payment to Louicvian Mercantile represented by accused
Juanita G. Casquejo, for items/supplied such as the three
sacks ol rice, one dozen corned beel, two dozens of linapa,
two kilos of dried fish, two kilos of bolinao, five packs of
Nescafe {100 grams each), three kilos brown sugar, six

* 1. ac 88,
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pieces of AA battery, one ream of cigarettes, three dozens of
noodles, one bottle of rﬁhhing alcohol, without conducting
any canvass of prices of at least three (3) suppliers, as
mandated by law, to afford the municipality of a fair chance
to get the lowest prevailing prices of the said items in the
market, in vielation of the government accounting and
auditing rules and without due regard to the accused public
officers” duties o safeguard public funds from wastage and
to ensure that the municipality can get the lowest and fair
price of said items, thereby giving unwarranted benefit to
Lovievian Mercantile, to the damage and prejudice of the
Government in the aforesaid amount of Four Thousand
Four Hundred Sixty Three (p4,463.00) Pesos.

CONTRARY TO LAW.

(SB-11-CRM-0237)

That on 19 January 2001 to 29 January 2001, and 21
February 2001, prior or subsequent thereto, in the
Mumecipality of Caraga, Davac Oriental, Philippines, and
within the jurisdiction of this Honorable Court, the above-
named accused, whe are public officers, Alicia Morl y
Benitez, being then Municipal Mayor, Darius Pelayo y
Ortiza, Municipal Accountant, Calixto 0. Ladae, Municipal
Budget Officer, Gerardo Aguimod y Ferrando, Municipal
Treasurer, all of the Municipality of Caraga, Davao Oriental,
while in the petformance of their official functions, taking
advantage of their official positions, and committing the
crime in relation to their office through manifest partiality
evident bad faith or gross inexcusable negligence, conspiring
and confederating with each other, did then and there
willfully, unlawfully and criminally disburse public funds in
the total amount of TWENTY THREE THOUSAND TWO
HUNDRED TWENTY SEVEN PES0OS5 AND SIXTY FOUR
CENTAVOS ([P23,227.64) [or the catering services of the
employvees of the Municipality of Caraga who rendered
regular office functions in the accounting division and
treasurer's office, knowing fullly] well that as financial
managers of the LGU, the said disbursement has no legal
basis and in violation of the government accounting and
auditing rules and regulations withoul duc regard or slight
care to saleguard the LGU's funds from wastage, therchy
causing undue injury to the government and to public
interest in the total amount of TWENTY THREE THOUSAND
TWO HUNDRED TWENTY SEVEN PEZ0S AND SIXTY FOUR
CENTAVOS (P23,227.64).

CONTRARY TO LAW.

'rﬂi{
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(5B-11-CRM-02385)

That on 22 February 2001 to 29 June 2001, prior or
subsequent thereto, in the Municipality of Caraga, Davan
Oriental, Philippines, and within the jurisdiction of this
Honorable Court, the above-named accused, who are public
olficers, Alicia Mori y Benitez, being the Municipal Mayaor,
Jason Basoc y Guisongan, the Municipal Viee-Mayar,
Darius Pelayo y Ortiza, the Municipal Accountant, Calixto
0. Ladao, the Municipal Budget Officer, Gerardo Aguimod v
Ferrando, Municipal Treasurer, all of the Municipality of
Carapga, Davao Oriental, while in the performance of their
official functions, taking advantage of their official positions,
and committing the crime 1 relation to their offices,
conspiring and confederating with ecach other and together
with private respondent Juanita G. Casquejo, Proprietor of
Louievian Mercantile, through manifest partiality, evident
bad faith or gross inexcusable neglisence, did then and there
willfully, unlawfully and criminally conduct simulated
biddings for the purchase of construction and plumbing,
brush cutter, dry goods and grocery supplies, motorovele
spare parts, and Hand Set radios with battery packs and
chargers, with the objective of giving manifest partiality and
unwarranted benefits to Juanita G. Casquejo, thus, cause
undue injury to the government and public interest by
allowing payment in the total amount of One Hundred Fifty
Four Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Nine Pesos & 80/100
(P134,569. 80, on the purchases made with Louievian
Mercanlile, an estahlishment which is not a bona-fide
bidder.

CONTRARY TO LAW,

A charge for violation of Section 89, in relation to Section
128 of P.ID. No. 1445 was also filed against Alicia Mori, Darius
Pelayn, Calivtn Tadan, Gerardn Agnimad, and Ruhen Ruregne,
under the following Information docketed as Case No, SB-11-

CRM-0241:

That on 22 February 2001 to 13 Junec 2001, prior or
subsequent thereto, in the Municipality of Caraga, Davao
Criental, Philippines, and within the jurisdiction of this
Honorable Court, the above-named accused, who are public
officers, Alicia Mori ¥ Benitez, being the Municipal Mayor,
Darius Pelayo y Ortiza, the Municipal Accountant, Calixto
0. Ladao. the Municipal Budget Officer, Gerardo Aguimod v
Ferrando, the Municipal Treasurer, and Ruben B. Burgos,
the Revenue Caollector/ Procurement Officer Designate, all of
the Municipality of Caraga, Davao Oriental, while in the
performance of their official functions, laking advantage of
their official positions, and c‘nmm:iﬂing the crime inn relation

s
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to their office through manifest partiality evident bad faith or
gross incxcusable negligence, conspiring and confederating
with each other, did then and there willfully, unlawfully and
criminally grant, allow and use the cash advances of Ruben
Burgos in the total amount of Five Hundred Thousand Eight
Hundred Seventy WNine Pesos and Thirty Centavos
(PS00.879.30) for no specific purpose, and which were
authorized, processed and released on  different  dates
without the previous cash advances given to Ruben Burgos
having been first settled, liquidated, or a proper accounting
thercof having been rtade, with the objective of
circumventing the law on procurement of goods/ bidding, two
the damape and prejudice of the government.

CONTRARY TO LAW,

On July 4, 2011, the Court issued Hold Departure
Orders? and Warrants of Arrest® against all accused. On July
21, 2011, accused Darius Pelayo posted a cash bond for SB-
11-CRM-0241 and a property bond for SB-11-CRM-0235 to
0238 before the Regional Trial Court — Branch 6 of Mati,
Davao Oriental.® Before the same court, accused Jose Basoc
also posted a cash bond on July 22, 2011 for his temporary
liberty.® On the same day, accused Alicia Mori, Stanley Mori,
Jaime Labasano, and Ruben Burgos, posted bail through a
surety bond before the Office of the Executive Judge in the
Regional Trial Court (11" Judicial Region) of Davao City.”
Accused Juanita Casquejo also posted a cash bond before the
same court on September 28, 2011.8

The Returns of Arrest® for accused Calixto Ladao states
that he is already deceased, per Certificate of Registry No.
2008-05067, ¥ while Gerardo Aguimod remains at large.
During the presentation of the evidence of the defense
however, it was claimed that Aguimod already passed away
too.

On April 19, 2012, accused Alicia Mori, Stanley Mon,
Jose Basoc, Darius Pelayo, Jaime Labasano, Juanita
Casquejo, were arraigned. On August 6, 2012, Euben Burgos

* . at Volome I p 17-18, and 59-61
1[d. at 19-21.

" [d. at 47-53,

Sldan 113

Tld, at 4, 42-44

Pl oar 116,

#|d. ar 109 amd 119,

L at 117

TSN dated Oetober 5, 2015, p. 9.
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was arraigned. They all pleaded Not Guilty to the charges
against them.!?

During the Pre-trial held on February 12, 2013,13 the
following matters were stipulated upon by the parties:

1. That Darius O. Pelayo was the Municipal
Accountant;

2. That Ruben Burgos  was the Fevenue
Collector / Procurement Officer; and

3. That Jose Basoc was the Municipal Vice-Mayar,

The proposed issued to be resolved, as proposed by the
prosecution, are as follows:

1. Whether or not all the named accused in SB-11-
CEM-0235 to 0238 could be criminally and civilly
liable for violation of Section 3{e) of R.A. No. 3019,
and

2. Whether or not all named accused in SB-11-CRM-
0241 could be held criminally and civilly liable for
vinlation of Section 89, in relation to Section 128 of
P.DD. 1445.

For accused Alicia and Stanley Mori and accused Jaime
Labasano, the proposed issued to be resolved are:

1. In Criminal Cases No. SB-11-CEM-0235 to 0238 -
Whether or not the accused are liable for violation of
Section 3(e) of R.A. No. 3019,

2. In S5B-11-CEM-0241 - Whether or not the accused
are liable for wiolation of Section 89, in relation to
Section 128 of P.D. 1445,

Finally, for accused Pelayo, Basoc and Burgos, the
proposed issue for resolution is whether or not the charge for
violation of Section 3{e) of R.A. No. 3019 against the accused

will prosper.

L Records, Voduome |1 ppe TEG-TY9E, 222 o 222-4
Ll at Wodpme [H, p. 22
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Om Apnl 15, 2013, the prosecution started presenting its
evidence. It called to the witness stand Felipe P. Provido and
Lilma A. Paguyan.

[n the course of the presentation of evidence, this Court
issued a Resolution dated February 28, 2014, suspending
accused Alicia B. Mori as Municipal Mayor, Stanley E. Mori as
Secretary to the Mayor, and Jaime Labasano as Municipal
Treasurer, for a period of ninety (90) days.!# The three accused
sought a reconsideration of this, which the Court denied in a
Resolution dated July 7, 2014.'% The said Resolution was
elevated by the accused (o the Supreme Court, but was
dizmissed on September B, 2014, and which dismissal became
final on October 31, 2014.16

EVIDENCE FOR THE PROSECUTION

Felipe P. Provido is the State Auditor [II of the
Commission on Audit. In October 2002, pursuant to a written
order’” from his Cluster Supervisor and endorsement!® from
the Office of the Ombudsman, Provido conducted a Special
Audit Examination on the grant and release of retirement pay
to Calixto Ladao (Ladao], the purchase of personal items by
the Municipality of Caraga, the contracting of catering services
without basis by the said Municipality, the conduct of a
simulated bidding with a non-bonafide bidder, and the grant
of cash advances to Ruben Burgos (Burgos).'?

In the course of his audit, he asked for the documents
related to the above-mentioned transactions from Municipal
Treasurer Gerardo Aguimod (Aguimod] and Municipal
Accountant Darius Pelayvo (Pelayo). He was told that these
documents have been forwarded fo the Provincial Auditor. He
then requested from the said Provincial Auditor the
documents, which were provided to him. Among these are the
disbursement vouchers and other documentary attachments
for the payment of retirement benefits of Ladao, the purchase
of items for personal purpose, calering services, purchases
without public bidding, and cash advances of Burgos. He

1 fel, al Velwme 11, p. 369,
15 Jel. at Volume ¥, p. 37.

16 gl al 294,
I Exhihic AL
# Fhihit B

TSN dated April 15, 2013, pp. 12-20.
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evaluated these documentis and summarized his findings in
the Summary Report,©

SB-11-CRM-0235

In his report, Provido noted several deficiencies and
irregularities in the disbursements. In relation to the grant
and release of retirement pay to Ladao, ¥ he identified
Disbursement  Voucher No. 101-9907-1356, and a
corresponding check both for the amount of Three Hundred
Twenty Six Thousand Four Hundred Sixty Three Pesos and
Thirty Five Centavos (P326,463.35|, 2 representing cash
advance for the gratuity pay of Ladao.?® From the documents,
it could be seen that Ladao requested for the said cash
advance, ** that Alicia Mori approved the disbursement
virichers,®® that Pelayo as Municipal Accountant, certified the
availability of funds,” and that Ladao eventually received?” the
amount of P326,463.35 indicated in the check 28

In addition to the P326,463.35 cash advance, Provido
noted there are other several cash advances made by Ladao.
The payment of Fifty Thousand Pesos (P50,000.00) each were
approved by Alicia Mori and certified by Pelayo as additional
cash advances of Ladao. * A second payment of Fifty
Thousand Pesos (P50,000.00) was again received by Ladao,
and approved by Alicia Mori.* However, Provido could not tell
who signed above the name of Pelayo in the Disbursement
Voucher, claiming that it is not the customary signature of
Pelayo. *' Attached to the Disbursement Voucher for this
payment is a Request for Obligation of Allotment (ROA). The
availability of funds for this obligation was certified to by
accused Labasano.?? These payvments were soon followed by
the sums of Forty-Five Thousand Pesos (P45,000.00) and Five
Thousand Pesos (P5,000.00) as “full payment of retirement

it Exhibit 1.

1 Exhibit G, items 22 bo 26, po H
2 Exhibit P-1 and P-2

ITEM dated Apreil 15,2013, 5. 29
& Ex kit P-1-h

¥ Exhibit P-1-¢.

i Exhibit P-1-d.

7 Exlilhit P-1-a.

an Id.at 20-35,

29 Exhibit M and submarkings

W Exhibit € ane submarkings,

N TEN dated April 15,2013 [F.M.), pp. 5-6.
' Exhiteit O0-1-2
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gratuity.”* These payments were approved by Alicia Mori,
certified to by Pelayo, and its corresponding ROA was certified
to by Labasano.*

The payment of above-mentioned amounts, totaling Four
Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty-
Three Pesos and Thirty-Five Cents (P476.463.35). was
observed by Provido to be irregular, noting that there is no
legal authority or basis for the advance pavment of retirement
gratuily because advance payments are prohibited by the
Accounting and Auditing Rules and Regulations.”s Provido also
observed that Ladao retired on July 31, 1999, as shown by his
retirement letter3® addressed to the Municipal Mayor, This
retirement letter was approved on August 2, 1999, However,
he did not actually retire but continued to stay in service, by
virtue of the Recall Order® of Mayor Alicia Mori dated July 27,
19949, Provido claims that since Ladao stayved in service, he
should have refunded to the Municipality the P476,463.35
that he received. 28

Finally, the amounts of Thirty Six Thousand Nine
Hundred Seventy Three and Ninety Seven Centavos
(F36,973.97)* and Twenty Seven Thousand Thirty-Nine Pesos
and Eighteen Centavos (P27,039.18)% were paid to Ladao as
“advance payment ol terminal leave effective July 31, 19997
Provido testified that these were requested by Ladao, approved
by Alicia Mori, and certified to as to the availahility of funds by
Pelayo. The ROA for the P27,039.18 was also certified to by
accused Labasano, as to the availlability of funds,

As with the retirement gratuity payments, Provido claims
that there are irregularities too with the disbursements, since
payment for terminal leaves is not among those items
authorized 1o be paid under cash advances in accordance with
existing Auditing Rules and Regulations. !

Provido then summarized his f(ndings in the Audit
Observation Memorandum?? and called the attention of the

 Exhibit () and submarkings.

HTEN dated Aprl 15, 2013 [P, pp. 12-13.
TTEN dated Aprl 15, 2013 {P.M), pp- 14-25.
2= Exhibit ¥

W Exhilt B

TEN dated April 15, 2003 (P.M, pp. 1517,
2 Exhibit M and submarkings

¥ Exhilvit L and submarkings.

WOTEM dated Apcil 15, 2013 (P.M.} po 282,

2 Exhibit H
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Municipality to it. He received a letter reply* [rom Mayor
Stanley Mori. After evaluation, he found that the reply and the
documents submitted to him are not acceptable, and he then
proceeded to make the Final Audit Report.™ Provido also
stated that the Municipality of Caraga suffered damages or
losses by reason of the irregular payments, it appearing that
there was double payment of these benefits, first from the
Municipality, and second from the Government Service
Insurance System (GSIS).*5

On  cross-examination hy the counsel of accused
Labasano, Provido stated that he did not see any conspiracy
on the part of accused Labasano.” However, he said that the
municipal officials who participated i the transaction caused
undue injury to the government. Provido claims that each has
to share in the responsibility of seeing to it that the funds of
the municipality are utilized in accordance with internal rules
and regulations. As to accused Labasano, Provido opined that
accused was negligent in failing to check the completeness or
the nature of the documents being processed, 47 He
acknowledged, however, that Labasano’s signature does not
appear in any of the documents except [or the checks that
were 1ssued to Ladao,*®

Provido explained the processing of the checks for the
retirement of Ladao: il was first prepared by the HEMO, after
which it will pass to the Municipal Accountant and the
Internal Auditor. The Municipal Treasurer will then prepare
the check, without signature first, then forward the same to
the Municipal Maycor., Onee the Municipal Mayor signs it in
approval, it will be returned to the Municipal Treasurer, for his
signature, The ROA, on the other hand, is prepared by the
Budget Cffice.* In this case, it was Labasano who signed the
check last. It presupposes the same had been examined
already by the internal auditor. Although Provide still found
the issuance of the check to be irregular because pavment of
terminal leaves should not be in the form of cash advance, he
nevertheless acknowledged that the propriety of a

B Exlibet |

M Exhibit F.

VTSN dated April 15, 2003 (.M, p. 32
1TEN dated Aprll 1é, 2013 (P.M.), p, 3
A . at pp. T8

®Id at 15,

id ar 1614,
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disbursement is determined by another department of the
municipality, and not by Lahasano 5°

Provido also admitted that he did not furnish Labasano a
copy of his report because he is not required to do so. He,
however, conducted an exit conference with the Municipal
Mayor, the Municipal Treasurer, and Municipal Accountant,
among others, to inform them of his audit findings and of the
uregularities discovered, and to give the officials a chance to
explain why the transaction was done. In this case, the
officials were asked to submit documents to support their
explanation, which the municipal officials did.>!

Provido believes that the government paid Ladao twice for
his retirement benefits, first through the Municipality of
Caraga, and second through the GSIS. Although these are two
different agencies, they belong to the same government. When
asked who has the obligation to pay Ladao's retirement
benefits, Provide answered that it depends under what law
Ladao chose to be paid. In this case, Ladao chose R.A. No.
1616, which means that the municipal government should
pay. He said that the Municipality of Caraga paid Ladao his
retirement gratuity and terminal leave, while GSIS paid Ladao
his final retirement gratuity in 2003. According to Provido, if
Ladao is paid by the LGU, he should no longer be paid by
GBIS. Provido also did not inform GSIS about this, because it
should have been the obligation of the LGU, through the
Murnicipal Mayor or the Municipal Treasurer, to inform GSIS 5
During the continuation of his cross-cxaminalion the following
day however, Provido stated that he cannot say if it is the duty
of the Municipal Treasurer to inform the GSIS of retirement
matters. 3

During re-direct examination, it was again stated by
Provido that there was an advance payment of retirement
benefits to Ladao, when he was given his retirement gratuity
when the retired on July 31,1999, He did not however retire
but continued in service until January 2003. He also opined
that it is the responsibility of the Municipal Mayor to inform
the GS1S of the retirement of Ladao.

* Il at 24-28.

SELd. ac 30-41.

BTSN dated Apeil 16, 2013 [(P.M), pp. 7479
SUTEN dated April 17,2013 (AM.), p. 47
TN dated April 17, 2003 (AM.], ppAl-fd
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The parties then stipulated that the accused in these
cases are all public officials of Caraga, Davao Oriental, with
the exception of Casquejo who is a private individual, It was
also stipulated upon that Labasano’s participation in these
transactions were his signatures on the checks, and that the
vouchers were prepared by another Treasurer, accused
Aguimod. 39

A re-cross examination was then conducted by the
counsel of accused Labasano, during which Provido confirmed
that the only role of the Treasurer is the preparation and the
signing of the check, because all the signatories have already
signed and that it has been certified to by the Internal
Accountant of the Municipality, 5

The prosecution then presented its next witness, Lilma
A. Paguyan, Human Resource Management Officer Il of
Caraga, Davao Oriental. She testified only for Case No, SB-11-
CRM-0235.

Paguyan testified that in 1999, Calixto Ladao, then the
Municipal Budget Officer of Caraga, asked him to compute his
retirement benefits. Her computation was made under R.A.
No. 1616, and placed in the retirement gratuity form.5 In the
approval portion appears the signature of accused Alicia Mori,
In CSC Form No. 6, Paguyan also computed the terminal
leave of Ladao. Paguyan likewise identified the Notice of Salary
Adjustment> and the Service Record® which she used as
basis for her computation of the last salary received by Ladao.
Ladao then took these documents from her.5!

Alter she gave the documents to Ladao, she was no
longer updated on any development on the matter until she
was invited to the committee hearing in October 2001.52 It
was then that she learned of the recall order® by the Mayor on
the retirement of Ladao and asked for a copy of the same {rom
the latter. Ladao, however, did not give her a copy, so she

TGN dated April 17, 20013 (AM.], pp. 91-83,
5 TSN Uaved Apeil 17, 2003 (M l.p-4.

* Exhibic - 1.

58 Exhibic #-3

3 Evhibit K-3
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A1 TN dated February 10, 2014, pp, 15-21
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obtained one from the Municipal Accountant. The recall order
for Ladao was signed by Alicia Mori.5

During cross-examination, Paguyan stated that there was
no gap ol service between Ladao’™s retirement and his re-
assumption Lo office as the Office of the Municipal Budget
Officer did not become vacant. During the committee hearing,
Paguyan affirmed that Ladao promised to pay back the
gratuity that was paid to him. From 1999 to 2003, she
received no report of discrepancies regarding the retirement of
Ladao. &5

Paguyan also confirmed that Alicia Mori served as Mayor
of Caraga from 1998 to 2001, and was replaced by Stanley
Mori from 2001 to 2004. She also knew that the two mayors
and the local officials have been verbally urging Ladao to
return the money paid to him. Specifically, Stanley Mori
formally demanded the payment of money, and the Municipal
Treasurer verbally reminded Ladao again. In 2003, Ladao
finally retired because of his health problems and reiterated
that he will pay back the money so he can be cleared from any
accountability, 5 Papuyan also claimed that she was not
present when the COA did an exit conference regarding the
retirement of Ladao 57

SB-11-CRM-0236

Provido identified Disbursement Voucher No, 101-0102-
0316 in the amount of Four Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-
Three Pesos (P4,463.00) for the payment of “supplies used in
the office of the Municipal Mavor.,." The voucher was approved
by Alicia Mori and certified to by Pelayo as to the availability of
funds. Its supporting documents include the Purchase
Request™ signed by Alicia Mori, the Abstract of Canvass™
signed by Alicia Mori, Burgos, Ladao, Aguimod, and Pelayo,
Purchase Order”! with the recommending approval of Aguimod
and the approval of Alicia Mori, Inspection Report™ signed by

*FTEM dated Febhruary 10, 2004, pp. 22-24
0 at pp, 2932,

i ld at 32-34

8T 1. at 36

A0 Exchibit 2

89 Exhifilt AN
™ Exhibit BR
1 Exhilbsit OO
2 Exhilvin
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Alicia Mori, Burgos and Aguimod, and the Acceptance Report™
signed by Blas Andoyo, a Utility Worker.

For this disbursement, Provido noted that the items
purchased are rice, corned beef, tinapa, daing, coffee, sugar,
batleries, cigarette, noodles, and rubbing alcohol. He stated in
his report thal these “are not nccessary for regular
functions/duties of the Office of the Mavor.” According to him,
this is tantamount to use of government funds for private
purpose as the nature of the items are for personal needs
only. ™

Another observation is that there is “no Inspection Report
of designated inspection committee and no Acceptance
Report.” Although there is a document labeled “Inspection
Report,” Provido claims that this is not the “proper” Inspection
Report as it was nol signed by the persons authorized by
existing regulations. The only signatures appearing therein are
those who prepared and endorsed for approval the said report,
namely, Alicia Mori, Burgos, and Aguimod. Provido also claims
that the Acceptance Report™ attached to the Disbursement
Voucher is not valid.™

Provido's third observation on this disbursement is that
the winning bidder, Louievian Mercantile, has no existing
business establishment, He found the bidder's address from
the official receipt of its Business Permit?’ attached to the
Disbursement Voucher, and paid the address a visit. He lound
that the business establishment does not exist, and took
pictures ™ of the wvicinity where Louievian Mercantile is
supposed to be located. Louievian Mercantile also does not
have a business permit license for the line of business that it
is engaged In. Another observation i1s that there was no
canvass of at least three suppliers, but onlyv an abstract of
canvass with the canvass sheets.™ Providoe stated in his report
that there was also no BIR VAT/EVAT deduction made on the
purchase, when auditing regulation requires that the VAT or
EVAT be deducted when the tramsaction is with the
government,

3 Exhibit EE

TSN dated April 16, 2013 (AM.], pp. 16-17
™ Exhibit FE

™Il ac 17-19,

T Exhibic RR

™ Exhibit 55-1

™ Exhibit BB, DB-1, and BE-2.

TSN dated A |'.|I'H 16, 2013 [ A, '-!.]I 18 17-28.
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On cross-examination by the counsel of accused
Casquejo, Provido stated that he did not invite Casquejo, the
proprietor of Louievian Mercantile, to the exit conference. He
acknowledged thal during his visit to the business address of
Lowievian Mercantile in October 2002, he took a photo. The
phate shows that there are two structures, with the other one
bearing the signage “(3.M. Press.” Provido further admitted
that the address supplied to him, he was told that Louievian is
located near G.M. Press. He claims he limited his inspection
within the vicinity of G.M. Press, and that he no lomger looked
farther because there is no establishment of Louievian
Mercantile that can be seen in the area. He also did not
inguire from any person there, nor did he go to G.M. Press to
verify if there is a Louievian Mercantile beside it. He also did
not feel it necessary to peep through the glass wall of G.M.
Press because he just wanted to be assured that there is an
establishment that is conspicuous.®!

On the finding in his repori that the business permit
provided to him was "not consistent with the contents of the
application for Mayor's Permit [and] makes the authenticity of
the submitted document doubtful,” Provido explains that this
15 because he was only given a machine copy and not the
original copy 52

Upon questions propounded by the Court, Provido stated
that he believes there was an actual purchase of the goods and
that payment was made therefore. He could not however say if
prices of the goods were fair prices because he ran out of time
to conduct that kind of evaluation.5

Still on cross-examination, Provido stated that public
bidding is not the only mode of procurement, and that
canvassing can also be resorted to. In canvassing, at least
three suppliers should submit a gquotation of their prices.
Provido admitted that he did not ask the accused why they
resorted to canvassing. ® As to the goods purchased from
Louievian Mercantile, he did not verify from the Municipality
or from the Mayor who are the end-users of these poods. He
was also not aware that there were Philippine Army and
Philippine National Police contingenis in Caraga at that time

BUTSN daved April 16, 2013 (P, pp. 47-51
B2 at 52-54

Bl ot 55,

™ TSN dated April 17, 2013 (AM.), pj. 4-6
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- to saleguard the community. Provido argued that he could not
conclude that the goods were for a public purpose because
there are no documents to show this fact. As an example, he
cited that there should be a Program of Work, or an
acknowledgment receipt by the people who received the
items. B8

On the reason why he did not invite Casquejo to the exit
conference, Provido explained that he could not locate her and
he does not know her personally,® On locating Louievian
Mercantile, Provido stated that he did not inspect the whole
stretch of L. Guerrero Street because the area was confined
only to the vicinity of G.M. Press, which location was made
known to him by the Municipal Treasurer during the exit
conference. The address of No. 20 Leon Guerrero Street was
also indicated in the business permit. It is by the fact that he
coulld not locate the address that he concluded the non-
existence of Louievian Mercantile. He also could not establish
that the purchases made were from Louievian. 5

On re-cross by the counsel of accused Casquejo, Provido
stated that he did not verify who the owner of G.M. Press is. #8

SH-11-CRM-0237

Another transaction evaluated by Provide was the
contracting of the catering services. The parties entered into
stipulations as to the identity of the documents consisting of
the Disbursement Voucher and its supporting papers, and to
the existence and execution, but not the truth of the contents,
of the Summary Report, * the Audit Observation
Memorandum,®™ and the Final Audit Eeport®! incorporating
Provido’s findings and observations,

When cross-examined, Provido admitted that he did not
talk to the owner of RV Eatery, accused Casquejo, or accused
Ladao. ** Provide acknowledges that there was no irregularity

Bl ar 7-110

B TEM dated April 17,2013 (AM.], pp.fs.

¥ TEM dated April 17, 2013 {A M., pp. 6%-72,
B TEMN dated April §7, 2013 (F.M), p 5.

¥ Exhibit G

HExlyibae 1

N Exhibit F

32 TSN dated April 16, 2013 [AM.), pp. 20-37.
=TSN dated April 16, 2013 [F.M.), pp. 70-7Z.
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as to the mode of canvassing, stating that his concern was
only as to the nalure or purpose of the catering done, He
affirmed that R.V. Eatery was the only qualified caterer at that
time, but only because it was given some advantage, He did
acknowledge that the other caterers were coming from Manay,
which is 20 to 25 kilometers away from Caraga, and from
Baganga, which is about 40 kilometers away, and it would be
impractical to request these caterers to serve in Caraga, ™

SB-11-CRM-0238

FProvido testified that he also audited transactions by the
Municipality for the purchase ol items, without bidding. He
examined eight Disbursement Vouchers and their supporting
documents, and incorporated them in his Summary Report,
under Items No. 1 to 8.

As with the previous case, the defense admitted to the
existence of the aforementioned documents and the fact of
examination and evaluation by Provido of the same, but not as
to correctness of his findings. %5

On the charge of an alleged simulated bidding (SB-11-
CEM-0238), Provido claims that he did not consider the
Certification submitted by Davao Cathay Parlis & Hardware
and Narel's Bookstore, lnc., because the certifications are
mere photocopies. He also did not invite them to the exit
conference, nor did he inform them that they might be
involved in anomalous transactions. Provido admitted that he
based his findings only on the documents given to him and did
not ask parties to submit more documents.

During cross-examination by the counsel of accused
Alicia and Stanley Mori, Basoe, Pelayo, and Burgos, Provido
stated that at the time he investigated these transactions, the
same were already consummated. Hence, there were no
suspensions of payments or disallowances from COA, When
asked about Evelyn Ronquillo, the complainant of this case,
Provido clairms that he did not meet her or looked for her, and
that he merely concentrated on the issues of the case. He
again admitted that he did not notify the parties of the results

HTEM dated April 17, 2003 [(AM. ), pp.21-24
YETEN dated April 16, 2013 (A M) pp. 37-51
TN dated April 16, 2003 [F.M.], pp. 56-39,
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of his indings, but claimed that he notified the Mayor, and he
believes it is the Mayor’s responsibility to notify the
department heads. %7

As for the items purchased consisting of handset radios
and office supplics, he did not check il these were delivered.
However, he found that while the mode of procurement was
through bidding, the documents were incomplete to support
the bidding conducted. Provido also claims that one of the
canvass forms for the purchase of a bush cutter was denied by
one of the alleged participating, albeit losing, supplier. He no
longer bothered to talk to accused Casquejo because he could
not locate her or her store. The other suppliers in this case
could not also be identified.”® On the purchase of spare parts
for a BMX motorcycle, Provido could not conclude that the
purchase of the motorcycle parts are for a public purpose
because there are no documents to show that it is an official
motoreycle of the LGU. He cited the necessity of a pre-
inspection report where the motorcyele is indicated or
specified as to the plate number and end-user. However, he
did not go to Caraga to verify if the two motorcycle units were
indeed owned by the LGU, nor did he ask the municipality to
provide him copies of the Certificate of Registration and other
lacking documents, as he was working within a limited time
frame. He merely noted these deficiencies in his Audit
Observation Memorandum, and furnished the mavor a copy of
the same. During the exit conference in 2003, the officials
informed him that they will submit the documents. However,
months  passed without the missing documents being
submitted, so he finalized his report.®

SB-11-CRM-0241

Provido testified that he also conducted an audit on the
cash advances granted and released to Ruben Burgos. He
reported this under [tems 13 and 18 of his Summary Report.
For these transactions, he examined four Disbursement
Vouchers, 1% and a Certification '"! from the Municipal
Accountant [Pelayo) that Acting Supply Officer Burgos already

97 TSH datod April 16, 2013 [P.M], pp. 60-68.

HETEN dated Apeil 17, 2003 (A M) p. 12-16,

2 d ar 25-30,

181 Exchibir RRRR and submarkings, 5555 and submarking, TTTT and submarkings, and YUYV, and
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liquidated the cash advances. The prosecution, however
manifested that the cash advances were nol properly
liquidated, notwithstanding the existence of the Certification
above-mentioned.

The defense stipulated as to the existence of these
documents, that Provido executed s Summary Report
incorporating his  findings, and later issued an Audit
Observation Memorandum, and finally, a Final Audit Report
containing  his  final findings,  observations, and
recommendations. The Final Audit Report was then submitted
to COA Regional Office No. XI by way of a Memorandum dated
May 20, 2004.1% Provido also executed an Affidavit 1% in
relation to his audit, 192

Frovido reported that this case involves four
Disbursement Vouchers covering a total of six checks, with
one voucher being disbursed through three checks,
representing the cash advances of Ruben Burgos. Provido
admitted to receiving a Certification dated January 15, 2003105
issued by Municipal Accountant Pelayo, certifying the Acting
supply Officer Ruben Burgos already liquidated his cash
advance of P5300,879,.30. Provido, however, noted that certain
documents are lacking so he informed Pelayo, through a letter,
that the Certification is not in order. Provido did not receive
any reply [rom Pelayo. Provido also stated that in the absence
of the missing supporting documents, he could not conclude
that the P5300,879.30 were indeed paid for the items stated in
the certilication, 19¢

On the re-cross of the counsel of the other accused
(Spouses Mori, Basoc, Pelayo, and Burgos), Provido affirmed
that it is the department heads that are responsible for the
documentation and that the municipal mayor merely signs off
after the said documents are prepared. In the case of the
liguidation of cash advances of Mr. Burgos, Provido agreed
with the defense counsel that it is the responsibility of the
department heads to check il the money was spent properly. If
the said money was not liguidated properly, it is the
responsibility of the mayor to follow up the same with the
accountable officer. He also confirmed that the municipal

VB2 B hibir 13

¥ Exhibit E

19 TSN daved Apicl 16 200173 (AM.), pp. H2-68
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e TN dated April 17, 2003 (A, PR 3142,



hewigion

People v, Mori, et al,
SE-11-CHM.-0235 to 02358, & 0241
Page 21 of 1iH)

mayor only affixes his or her signature upon seeing that the
supporting documents are complete, 197

On November 4, 2013 the Court allowed further cross-
examination of Provido based on a reservation made by the
counsel of Alicia Mori. Provido stated that in doing a financial
and compliance audit, he is required to report any
irregularities found. ! He admitted that when he submitted
his report to the COA Regional Director, minor revisions were
macde to his report. He also acknowledged that he submitted
his working paper ' together with his report, 119 [n the
preparation of the voucher, Provido explained that it is the
Budget Officer who signed as to the budgetary requirements,
the Municipal Treasurer as to the availability of funds, and the
Municipal Accountant as to the legality, propriety, and
completeness of the documents. After this, the Mayor should
review the documents before affixing his/ her signature, !

Alter presenting the two witnesses, the prosecution made
its Formal Offer of Documentary Exhibits. 2 It offered in
evidence Exhibits A, B, ¢ and submarkings, D and
submarkings, E and submarkings, F and submarkings, G and
submarkings, H and submarkings. I, .J for all cases.

Specifically for Case No. SB-11-CRM-0235, it offered
Exhibits K and submarkings, L and submarkings, M and
submarkings, N and submarkings, O and submarkings, P and
submarkings, Q and submarkings, R and submarkings, S and
submarkings, T, U, V, W, X, and Y.

For Case No, SB-11-CRM-0236, the prosecution offered
Exhibits Z and submarkings, AA and submarkings, BB and
submarkings, CC, DD, and EE.

For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0237. the prosecution offered
Exhibit FF and submarkings, GG, HH, I, JJ and
submarkings, KK, LL and submarkings, MM, NN, 00 and
submarkings, PP, and QQ.

W TSN dated April 17, 2013 (PM.), pé-R
12 TEN dated November 4, 2013, pp.23-27,
VB3 Exhilic G

HMITEN dated Movember 4, 2013, pp. 33-37
LIt i at 3711

112 Becords, Yoleme IV, p. 17
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For Case No. S8B-11-CRM-0238, the prosecution offered
Exhibits ER, 8S and submarkings, TT and submarkings, UL
and submarkings, VV, WW and submarkings, XX, YV, 27,
AAA, BBB and submarkings, CCC, DDD and submarkings,
EEE, FFF, GGG, HHH and submarkings, [, JJJ and
submarkings, KKK, LLL, MMM, NNN and submarkings, OO0,
PPP and submarkings, RER, 853, TTT and submarkings,
UUU, VWV and submarkings, WWW, XXX and submarkings,
YYY., ZZ7 and submarkings, AAAA, BBBB, CCCC, DDDD and
submarkings, EEEE, FFFF and submarkings, GGGG, HHHH,
I, JJJd - and  submarkings, KKKK, LLLL, MMMM and
submarkings, and NNNN._

For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0241, the prosecution offered
Exhibits 0000, PPPP, QQOQQ, RRRER and submarkings, SS53
and submarkings, TTTT and submarkings, UUUU, VVVV and
submarkings.

The Court, in its May 21, 2014 minute resolution, 113
resolved to admit in evidence all the documentary exhibits
offered in the tenor that they were testified to by the witnesses.

Following this, accused Alicia Mori, and Stanley Mori,
Darius Pelayo, Jose Basoc, and Ruben Burgos separately filed
Motions for Leave of Court to File Demurrer to Evidence, !4
These motions were denied by the Court in a Resolution dated
Jualy 25, 2014, 118

EVIDENCE FOR THE DEFENSE

In view of the denial of the Motions for Leave of Court to
File Demurrer to Evidence, the defense, on February 9, 20135,
presenting their witnesses, They presented accused Jose
Basoc., Jaime Labasano, Ruben Burgos, Darius Pelayo,
Juanita Casquejo, Stanley Mori and Alicia Mori as witnesses.

5B-11-CRM-0235

Before accused Jaime D. Labasano gave his testimony,
the prosecution entered into a stipulation that Labasano was

' Recoads, Voleme 1Y, 47 7-A
I 1. at Volume ¥, pp. 35, 508
VE |t )
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the Municipal Treasurer of Caraga only until January 2, 2001.
Also, it was stipulated by the parties that Labasano
participated only in the signing of the check subject matter of
this case,l16

Labasano testified that he became the OQIC Municipal
Treasurer of Caraga when Ladao retired in 1999, He described
the steps in processing the retirement of an employee: First,
the employee would fill up the application form and submit the
supporting documents to the Human Resource Management
Officer (HRMO). The HRMO would then compute the total
number of leave credits that the retiring employee earned.
After the compulation, the HRMO endorses the documents to
the Municipal Budget Officer, who in turn verifics from his
records if there is an existing budget for the payvment of the
retirement gratuily. The documents are then endorsed to the
Mayor for approval. Once it has the signature of the Municipal
Accountant, Municipal Budget Officer, and the Municipal
Mayor, the Municipal Treasurer will then prepare the check, 117

In the case of the retirement of Ladao, before Labasano
signed the check, he found that there was a recall order issued
for Ladao, He then asked the Mayor to allow him to travel to
Mati, Davao Oriental to refer the matter with the Provincial
Auditor. After meeting with the Provincial Auditor Veronica
Lawas, he was told that he can sign the check because the
documents were complete, proper, and legal. When the second
claim for retirement was presented by Ladao, Labasano was no
longer connected with the government service, 1%

Labasano explained that the terminal leave payments he
advanced to Ladao represented the earned credit of accused
while still in government, and what Ladao should rightfully
receive. 1'% Labasano also confirmed that he issued a
Certificate of Clearance!2 dated March 30, 1999 to Ladao, 12!

On cross-examination, Labasano admitted that when he
issued the check, he also examined the signatures on
vouchers and the ROAs and that he believes the signatories
performed their functions regularly and in order, 122

1% TSN dated Februwary 10, 2005, pp. 12-15
T at 18-21.
PE g, ar 21-22,
L% 1, ak 2526,
M Exhibit K-7.
"1 TSN dated Fehroary 10, 2015, pp. 43-44
1 [d, ar 6366,
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Labasano also affirmed that for the July 1999 retirement
of Ladao, he issued checks payable to Ladao, one dated May
10, 1999123 . June 28, 1999,'** June 14, 1999,1%% and July 6,
1999,1%= July 22, 1999,127 and November 17, 1999, 128

On the advice given to her by Provincial Auditor Veronica
Lawas, Labasano stated that it was a merely verbal advice and
was not reduced to a written authority or letter permission. He
claimed that he signed the checks because he was able to
examine the attached Disbursement Vouchers and found it to
be regular, in addition to having consulted the Provincial
Auditor, He also reiteraled that the amount received by Ladao
is his final payment, for the gratuity benefits based on the
total earned leave credits, and not a cash advance, 12¢

On re-direct, he stated if all the documents are complete
and if all the required signatories have affixed their signatures,
he would sign the check. As to the advice given to him by the
Provincial Auditor, he informed Mayor Alicia Mori of the same,
and she did not object to it, as shown by her signature on the
check.!* As for the signature appearing in the ROA,!3 he
confirmed the initials to be his and affirmed his certification
that there are available funds for the retirement of Ladag, 132

The defense next presented accused Stanley E. Mori as
witness for Case No. SB-11-CRM-0235. Stanley Mori is
married to Alicia Mori, the present Mayor of Caraga. Stanley
Mori served as the Mayor of Caraga too, from 2001 to 2004,
and at present, serves as a private secretary of Mayor Alicia
Mori. %7 He testified that he came to know of the retirement of
Ladao a few months after assuming office, when Vice-Mayor
Samuel Dominguez came into his office, asking if they can
invite Ladao to a commitiee hearing. He said yes and gave
them permission to investigate him. He was then furnished a
report of the said committee hearing, '3 He called Ladao to his

132 Eyhibic M-2

Le¥ Exhibit L-1.

95 Exhibit M-2

Bk Exhilvit (-2

L7 Exhibit -2

F Exhibvits 03 and ()-4

HETSN dated February 10, 2015, pp 6971,
VIO I, ak F5-Fi6.

1 Exhihit M-1

172 3. at B0-H1

M3 TSN dated October 5, 2015, pp. 5-12.
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office and asked him why he is already collecting gratuity
payments. Ladao said that he is about to retire. 175

On January 6, 2003, Ladao wrote him a letter, informing
him that he (Ladao| is retiring on March 6, 2003, because he
will be 65 years old by then, Stanley Mori then approved it,
stating that 65 is the mandatory retirement age. '3 On the
same date, Stanley Mori also approved the Certificate of
Clearance for the retirement of Ladao. He explained that at
that time, he has no notice from COA of any irregularity, no
notice of suspension or disallowance, and when the Certificate
of Clearance arrived in his office, it was already signed by the
Municipal Treasurer and the Municipal Accountant. At that
time, their municipality was a third class municipality which
cannot afford a General Service Officer, and it was the
Municipal Treasurer who performed the functions of the GS0.
The Municipal Treasurer therefore would have first knowledge
if & retiree has previous or current accountabilities with the
government. At the same time, the Municipal Treasurer checks
the validity and orderliness of financial documents. These
officers also knew of the gratuity payments previously received
by Ladao which were disbursed by the previous
administration. Seeing their signatures on the Certificate of
Clearance, he no longer felt the need to question them aboult
the accountabilities of Ladaa, believing that Ladao had been
cleared of all accountabilities, 137

The Certificate of Clearance also stated that it was being
1ssued to Ladao in connection with his application  for
retirement with GSIS. Stanley Mori believes that it should be
the duty of the Municipal Treasurer to inform the GSIS of
Ladao’s accountabilities, if any. As to the overpayment of
gratuities that the Municipality of Caraga paid (o Ladao, there
was an agreement that Ladao would pay it back in full, and
the Sangguniang Bayan tasked the Municipal Treasurer to
collect this. Stanley Mori admiited that he signed the
resolution embodying this. He was of the opinion however that
Ladao was entitled to his gratuity pay under the Local
Government Code. Their local finance official also believes the
same thing. He explains that the problem is not the propriety
or legality of Ladao’s entitlement to the gratuity pay, but the
amount that was paid, which was more than what he was
entitled to. It was the excess that Ladao should return to (he

5 4d_at 24-22
N hlat 23-24,
T Id. at 24-28,
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mumnicipality. The amount of overpayment to Ladao, however,
was not determined. To pay for this, Ladao told him that he
would pay the municipality once he gets payment from
GEl5, 1248

Stanley Mori also opines that a retiring employee can
collect both from the local government unit and from the G3IS,
and that these retirement benefits are separate from each
other. He reiteraled that the controversy was only on the
overpayment of gratuity pay to Ladan. !

On December 9, 2003, he wrote Ladao a letter!? asking
him to refund the overpaid amount, per report of Auditor
Provido. On December 17, 2003, Ladao wrote a reply 141
confirming that he received the amount of P341,181.28 from
GSIS, but that this is not enough to cover the P476.463.35
that he 1s supposed to return to the Municipality of Caraga.
According to Stanley Mort, he could no longer recall how
Ladao arrived at the amount of his accountability, but believes
that the computation of the exact amount to be paid back by
Ladao should have been the duty of the Municipal Accountant.
Stanley Mori also claims that State Auditor Provide was
furnished a copy of the reply of Ladao, but was no longer
informed if there were developments after that. When his term
as Mayor ended, he would sometimes meet Ladao and he
would remind him of his accountability, to which Ladao would
reply that he is already sickly. Stanley Mori also followed it up
with Municipal Treasurer Aguimod, but the latter was already
on sick leave that time, and eventually went into retirement. 142

Stanley Mori also testified that he was not a signatory to
the checks and disbursement vouchers for the gratuity pay to
Ladao. He also did not receive any notice of disallowance or
suspension regarding the retirement of Ladao from COA
during his term.'** He also denied conspiring with his co-
accused in this case, stating that the gratuity pay was received
by Ladao prior to his assumption of office. When he asked his
wife, Alicia Mori, about it, she told him that the payment to
Ladao was legal, and that it was a real claim supported by
documents. 144
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Stanley Mori also stated that there were lapses in
procedure when the Sangguniang Bayan dealt directly with
Ladao, a member of the executive office, Stanley Mori however
took this to mean that Ladao waived his right to question his
agreement with the Sangguniang Bayan. Stanley Mori also did
not expressly give his imprimatur or consent to the
Sangguniang Bayan on the order to Ladao to pay the excess
amount of gratuity pay, but just left the situation that way,145
He also maintains that he did not conspire with anyone in
signing Ladao’s Certificate of Clearance, and stated that he
found nothing wrong with it. He is also of the opinion that the
government did not suffer damage because Ladao was entitled
to his gratuity pay.!#

On cross-examination, Stanley Mori admitted that he
noted the recommendations in the Sangguniang Bayan
Committee Report stating that Ladao should refund the
amount he advanced as retirement henefit, and for the
Treasurer not to issue clearance with respect to the retirement
of Ladan. % Stanley Mori also confirmed that when he signed
the Certilicate of Clearance, he no longer inquired from the
recommending officers if Ladao had already paid back the
money that was advanced. He also confirmed that there were
no attachments to the Certificate of Clearance, but saw that it
was already signed by Pelayo and Aguimod, so there was no
reason for him not to sign it, %

Stanley Mori stated that he is not aware of the
requirements of R.A. No. 1616 or the Retirement Law, nor of
the requirements of the GSIS under R.A. No. 8291, He agrees
with the prosecution however, that as Municipal Mavor, it is
his duty to ensure that the emplovees abide by the Civil
Service Rules and Regulations and the GSIS Law. When asked
if he knows that the GSIS requires a clearance for the receipt
of any retirement benefit from any agency, Stanley Mori
replied that it is the direct responsihility of their Treasurer and
Accountant, and unless they come forward to him, he has no
duty to inquire from them regarding the disbursement of
funds for the retirement payment of employees. 14
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On re-direct examination, Stanley Mori claims that
although the agreement to pay between Ladao and the
Sangguriang Bayan does not bind his office, he nevertheless
sent a demand letter to Ladao as suggested by Provido,
According to Stanley Mori, it was the HRMO Head who was
responsible for the computation of retirement benefits, length
of service, computation of benefits, and gratuity pay, and since
the office of the HRMO holds the records of the employees, he
merely relied on them, 150

Accused Darius Pelayo also took the stand and testified
that Ladao gave his Notice of Retirement on April 28, 1999,
stating that he is going to retire on July 31, 1999, However, on
July 27, 1999, Mayor Alicia Mori recalled his retirement and
ordered him to remain in service. Ladao then continued
serving as Municipal Budget Officer and continued receiving
his salaries for the next 44 months until his retirement in
March 2003. Prior to this however, he was able to collect the
total amount of P476,463.35 representing advances on his
gratuity pay. Pelayo did not object to this because at that time,
there was already a computation from the HRMO as to the
amount that Ladao should receive, and there was already a
definite date of retirement — July 31, 1999, 151 He alsp issued
Ladao a Certificate of Clearance 52 dated March 30, 1999
because  there  were no  pending accountabilities,
disallowances, or unreturned cash advance from Ladao, 15

Pelayo states that all the original documents were
forwarded to COA. At that time, the municipality has no
photocopying machine, the nearest one bei ng in Mati, a town
three hours away from Caraga, !

Pelayo also clarified that the computation of the gratuity
pay of P476,463.35 represents only the benefits that Ladao is
supposed to get if he served up to July 1999, As far as he
knows, Ladao no longer collected any additional benefits that
would have accrued to him from July 1999 until his
retitement in March 2003. There was therefore no mjury

caused to the government, 155
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When Ladao was investigated by the Sangguniang Bayan
in 2001, Pelayo declared that he was not invited to shed light
on the matter.'5 There was also no reason for him to refuse
the issuance of a second Certificate of Clearance!s for Ladao’s
final retiement in 2003. Ladao had no liability or obligation
with the COA in terms of disallowances. He stated that it
would only be a COA decision that could oblige them to take
mto account the receivable disallowances of Ladao. Pelayvo
claimed he was not furnished a copy of the Audit Observation
Memorandum of the COA, or anv natice of the exit conference.
There was likewise no order from the Mayvor to withhold the
issuance of the clearance of Ladao, or any resolution from the
Sangguniang Bayan ordering him to do the same. Pelayo also
avers that what the Sangguniang Bavan came up with was
only a Committee Report and not a resolution. The directive of
the Sangguniang Bayan to Treasurer Aguwimod to collect
payment from Ladao did not involve his office, and he once
more reiterated that only a COA decision could oblige them to
look into their records, (58

Pelayo claims that there was no communication from
G513 if Ladao was able to collect from the latter. He also does
not know if the LGU furnished GSIS the retirement papers of
Ladao.!5 Pelayo again insists that Ladao was entitled to the
gratuity pay he received because it represents a commutation
of an employee’s creditable vears in service, which he is
entitled to under R.A. No. 1616. This payment should come
from the LGU, and is different from the retirement benefits
under the GSIS, which consists of refunds of his paid
premiums, 160

Pelayo maintains that there was no conspiracy between
him and his co-accused. He did not talk to Stanley Mori about
this since he was not yet the Mayor at that time. His functions
as Municipal Accountant was also different from that of the
Municipal Treasurer. This matter also passed through the
Local Finance Committee composed of the Municipal
Treasurer, Municipal Accountant, Budget Officer, the SB
Committee Chair on the Appropriation, and the Municipal
Planning and Development Office (MPDO), as the budget for

e g al 36~
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the gratuity pay would be coming from the regular funds, 191
As far as he knows, the Sangguniang Bayan did not seek
advice from the Local Finance Committee with respect to its
indings on the matter of the retirement of Ladao., 162

Upon questions propounded by the Court, Pelayo claims
that they paid Ladao through cash advance because they often
use this mode to disburse payments. Pelayo admitted that
there is no express law allowing this, but insisted that they
event use cash advance customarily for the payroll or salaries
of the employees. However, he confirms that no one is allowed
to make an advance on his or her salaries because it is
illegal. 193

Pelayo also claims that there are only three disbursement
vouchers!® representing the cash advance of Ladao, and this
amounts only to Four Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand Four
Hundred Sixty-Three and Thirty Five Cents (F426,463.35) and
not Four Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-
Three and Thirty-Five Cents (P476,463.35) as stated in the
Information.!s® However, Pelayo also mentioned that the LGU
paid the remaining amount of his gratuity pay,iee

Cn eross-examination, Pelayo avers that he came to
know of the Sangguniang Bayan’s order to collect the gratuity
pay advanced to Ladao after these cases were already filed. 157
Pelayo also maintained that he submitted all pertinent
decuments to COA, but could not say what date 168

On re-direct examination, Pelayo stated that he granted
the cash advances to Ladao on May, June, and July 1999
because as far as he is concerned, Ladao was sure to retire on
July 31, 1999. He also disclosed that there were instances
when employees were paid ahead of time, citing as example
the Sangguniang Bayan members whose salaries were paid on
the first or second session, for the first 15" of the month. He
again mentioned that the use of cash advance for the payroll
was a means of facilitating the pavment. As to the terminal
leave and gratuity pay of Ladao, these were processed by
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means of vouchers, and that this was allowed. as the intention
of evervone is to facilitate the payment, given the limited cash
available to the LGU. Ladao further explained that being a
third-class municipality, if they pay Ladao in bulk the sum of
P400,000.00plas  in one month, it would disrupt the
municipality’s cash flow, 159

On August 8, 2016, accused Alicia Mori testified for the
defense. Alicia Mori is the incumbent Mayor of Caraga and
was a three-term Mayor from 1992 to 2001.'70 She stated that
she received notice of retirement of Ladao and approved this
on July 27, 1999, but recalled the same on August 2, 1999,
The documents however show that the dates were
interchanged, showing that she recalled his retirement on July
27, 1999, and the approval of the retirement on August 2,
1999, According to Alicia Mori, this is a mere clerical error
resulting from a mix-up of documents being tyvped and
prepared by her staff.’’! On a given day, she needs to sign
voluminous documents consisting of vouchers, purchase
requests, purchase orders, travel requests, etc., and this is in
between meeting people who visit her office. 172

Alicia Mori explained her reason for recalling the
retirement of Ladac. She said that at that time, she really
needed his services because of the financial problems of the
municipality, and she was unable to find another person to
replace him, there being no qualified applicants to the position
that Ladao is vacating.!™

She also avers that when she was presented with Ladao’s
notice of retirement, it was accompanied by all the necessary
documents such as Ladao’s service record, Certificate of
Clearance, Clearance from the Ombudsman, SALN, etc., and
these became her basis for approving his retirement on July
A7, 1999,17% She also recalled that prior to his retirement,
Ladao made several cash advances against his gratuity pay.
Alicia Mori identified her signatures in all the disbursement
vouchers'” and the checks for the cash advance requested by
Ladao, stating that she did so because the documents already
contains all the necessary signatures including the signature

L Id, at T8-35.
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of their Municipal Accountant, Darius Pelayo, She contends
that she is the last person to sign, and when the document
has all the required signatures, it becomes ministerial for her
to sign as well. She emphasized that without the other
required signatures, she would not sign the documents at all,
It 1s also because of the signatures of Ladao and Pelayo that
she considered the cash advance valid, because their
signatures signified that there are available funds for it and
there was a budget allotted for that purpose. Prior to this,
Alicia Mori avers that there had been no cash advances of this
nature made by other employees. 179

[n December 1999, Alicia Mori discovered that Ladao was
able to make advances on his retirement gratuity. She became
mad at him and verbally demanded that he refund the whole
amount. Ladao promised to pay, but did not comply. Other
than the verbal demand, Alicia Mori also filed a case against
him, but it was “overtaken” by the expiration of her term of
office in June 2001177

Alicia Mori testified that for these transactions, she did
not receive any Notice of Suspension or Disallowance from
COA, or any Notice of Demand to refund the amount advance
by Ladaop.178

Al that time, Alicia Mori claims that it was not made
known to her if Ladao was retiring under R.A. No. 8291 or R.A.
No. 1616. He only informed her that he is retiring early
because he will be using his retirement money for his
daughter who will take the bar examinations. As a mother, she
allowed him to retire. She is also not aware that when Stanley
Mori was already the Mayor of Caraga, Ladao wrote him
informing him that he was availing of R.A. No. 8291 and not
R.A. No. 1616. Alicia Mori stated that this matter was not
discussed with the COA during their annual exit conference.
She also maintains that she does not doubt her department
heads and officers, and when documents are presented to her
for her signature, she has the impression that all the
supporting documents are legal and proper and regular. 17

OUn cross-examination, Alicia Mori claims that when she
recalled the retirement of Ladao, Municipal Accountant Pelayo
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and Municipal Treasurer Aguimod were informed of it
However, thev did not inform her that Ladao already got his
retirement benefits. 15 Alicia Mori also explained that he got
mad at Ladao upon learning of the cash advances because he
should not have done that. She agreed with the prosecution
that retirement benelits cannot be cash advanced. 181

On re-direct examination, Alicia Mori claims that even if
Ladao was not given the cash advance, he would still get the
gratuity pay from the LGU upon his retirement, as this is
mnandated by law, 82

SB-11-CRM-0236 and 0238

The testimonies of Llie witnesses under this section are
for both 5B-11-CRM-0236 and 0238, except for the testimony
of Vice-Mayor Jose Basoc who only testified for SB-11-CRM-
(1238,

Procurement and Supply Officer Ruben Burgos testified
for both Case Nos. SB-11-CRM-0236 and 0238. On the
Abstract of Canvass for the purchase of rice, comed beef,
tinapa, ete., Burgos identified the signature above his name as
his. He also identified the other canvasser as Ladao, and the
requesting party as Alicia Mori. He testified that the goods
purchased were delivered to the Philippine Army contingent
that was in their municipality at that time.!®™ According to
Burgos, the mode of procurement for this case was through
canvassing. He was only sent to Louievian Mercantile to get
their price quotations for the items to be purchased, As for the
other bidders, it was the Municipal Treasurer who handled the
canvassing. Burgos claims that he personally went to the
establishment of Louievian Mercantile at Guerrero Street,
Davao City and that the establishment was being managed by
David Casquejo and his wife, Juanita. He knew them
personally because they introduced themselves to him. 184

According to Burgos, he was able to transact with
Lowevian Mercantile for the purchase of handset radios. In
addition to the radios, several heads of office also requested

M TSN dared Augoest 10, 2016, pp. 12,
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items that were supplied by Louievian Mercantile. These heads
of office are Dra. Larosa (Municipal Health Office), Jovy Abarca
(Municipal Secial Welfare Development), Marvin Burgos
[Engineering Office] and Rebecea Constantino. Burgos alse
stated that he signed the Inspection Report because the
delivery of the items was completed, 155

Burgos explained that the items listed in the Abstract of
Canvass'®® (pipes, couplings, adaptors, etc.) were for the water
works that the municipality is supplying to the different
barangays. The requisitioning officer for this is Marvin Burgos,
the Water Works Supervisor. According to him, the Committee
on Awards was composed of Alicia Mori, Aguimod, and Pelavo.
Burgos claims that the mode of procurement lor this is
canvassing, and that he was one of the canvassers for this
purchase, together with Ladao. He testified that there were
other bidders, but that Louievian turned out to be the lowest
bidder. Burgos also signed the Inspection Report '™ after
inspecting the delivered items. The Acceptance Report, on the
other hand, was signed by Napoleon Loginsa, the Barangay
Captain of Barangay San Jose, but Burgos was also present at
the time the items were delivered, 155

For the purchase of the bush cutter, Burgos stated that
there were three suppliers: Louievian Mercantile, Davao
Cathay Parts, and Umbrus Hardware. Among the three,
Louievian offered the lowest bid at P16,700.00, whereas Davao
Cathay Parts gave a price of P17,500, and Unibrus,
F18,500.00.1% As for the other purchases where the name of
Burgos appears, he testified that he conducted the canvassing,
that Louievian Mercantile exists, that it offered the lowest
price, and that the items were delivered to the municipality. 190

Un cross-examination, Burgos stated that he personally
made a canvass at Louievian Mercantile. Loujevian is loeated
in Davao City, which is about five hours by bus from Caraga.
He alfirmed that Louievian is a supplier of all the items in his
canvass including rice, hand-held radios, bush cutter, and

toilet cleaners.'®! Burgos claims that Louievian deals in mixed
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merchandise. 2 He also admitted that all the items he
canvassed were not subjected to public bidding. %2

During re-direct, Burgns mentions that some items to be
purchased can be found in Caraga, while some have to be
sourced in Davae, such as the pipes and motor parts. When
he goes to Davao, there are also other errands he attends to in
addition to canvassing. He again testified that when he went to
the other bidders (o canvass, either the Municipal Treasurer or
the Municipal Budget Officer wonld be with him 194

The next witness presented is Juanita G. Casquejo, and
she also testified for both Case Nos. SB-11-CEM-0236 and
0238, of which she is an accused. Casquejo used to be a
government employee, having worked at the Department of
Public Works and Highways (DPWH). She retired in 1995, and
became a dealer of various goods and merchandise. Her
business establishment is Louievian Mercantile and it is
located at #20 Leon Maria Guerrero Street, Davao City, 95 As
proof of business, she presented her DTl Registration,'® a
business occupation permit issued Davao City,1%7 clearances
issued by the Health Insurance Corporation, Social Security
System and Barangay Captain of Brgy, 24-C'% and the BIR,!5
and a Business Permit for 2005.2% In the same year of 2005,
she applied for the retirement of her business.®! During the
time that Louievian Mercantile was still operating, it was her
husband, David Casquejo, Sr. who was managing it.

Casquejo testified that Louievian participated in the
bidding and canvassing for the supply of goods to the
Municipality of Caraga. However, she denied having conspired
with the other accused for the sale of various items without
conducting  canvass, thereby causing injury to the
government. She testified that it was the procurement officer
who made the canvass, after which her husband would receive
the Purchase Order, and they would deliver the items. 202
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For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0236, Casquejo identified her
signature on the check,?? the Official Receipt of Louievian
Mercantile, 2t and the Charge Invoice, % as proof that they
supplied and delivered the items listed in the Purchase Order
given to them.

Casquejo denied the charges under Case No. SB-11-
CRM-0236, stating that they were merely informed that they
were the lowest bidder for the purchases subject of this
case 2% Casquejo also stated that the first time she saw State
Auditor Felipe Provido was the time he was already testifying
in court. She belied the claim of Provide that Louievian
Mercantile does nol exist, explaining that the photo he took
was across the signboard of G.M. Press, while Louievian
Mercantile was located at the inner area of the shop, Using the
photos®"7 presented by Provido, she pointed to the location of
Louievian, whose signboards cannot be seen from the point
where Provido took the photes. Casquejo further stated that
G.M. Press is owned by her son. Casquejo claims that
residents of that area would be able to say where Louievian
Mercantile is, 208

According to Casquejo, she did not receive any invitation
from Provido for an exit conference, and came to know of these
cases against her only in October 2006. In reply to the
allegations against her, she submitted her Counter- Affidayit?ed
to the Office of the Ombudsman-Mindanao. 210

Upon questions by the counsels of her co-accused,
Casquejo testified that the business was in her name, but she
was only assisting her husband in the operation of their
business. She also stated that (.M. Press was previously
owned by her husband, but it is owned by her son now. She
reiterated that Louievian Mercantile is located in the same
building as G.M. Press. Casquejo also confirmed that when
she applied for a business permit, she was required to put a
signage on the establishment, and she put a medium-sized
ane_ 211
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At the time these transactions were entered into, she had
not met Alicia Meori. Only her husband met Alicia Mori, It was
only during the hearings before this Court in Quezon Cj ty that
she met Alicia Mori. 212

Casquejo again confirmed that they submitted quotes to
the LGU, and that their quotes were the lowest bids, which is
why the contract for the supplies were awarded to their
business. These supplies were delivered and paid for by the
municipality.213

During cross-examination, Casquejo admitted that in her
Official Application for DTI Registration, the purpose for the
business was to be a dealer of “general merchandise, such as
light and heavy equipment, parts, construction materials and
supplies; other agricultural products and supplies; xxx paints:
xxx traffic signs; bills, panels and accessories; electrical
appliances and supplies, office supplies and equipment,
printed forms, textile materials, sporting good. concrete
products, lumber, and other food products and dry goods.”?!4

When confronted by the Business Permil where her name
appears, Casquejo insisted that she is not the *manager” of
Louievian Mercantile, but only its “proprietor.” She also claims
that dried fish and cigarette are included in the term “general
merchandise”™ and that they can also deal with vehicles
because they pay taxes for that. Louievian Mercantile did not
display heavy equipment in their establishment though,
because they would only source these items from other
suppliers in Davao City, and when they get a good price, they
would submit their quotation to the procurement officer, 215

For the items subject of Case No. SB-11-CRM-0236,
Casquejo stated that they canvassed the prices of the items
from other suppliers and then submil the lowest price to the
Municipality of Caraga. For big volume transactions, they
would deliver the items to Caraga, but in the case of SB-11-
CRM-0236, the items were picked up by the procurement
officer using a service vehicle. They were paid for these items
in check, which her husband would usually claim in Caraga,
but [or these items, her husband requested that the check be

13 I At 22
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brought to them since it was only for the amount of P4,460.00,
On the official receipt issued for this purchase, no VAT
amount was reflected 216

On re-direct examination, Casquejo showed a Special
Power of Attorney?'” as proof that although the business was
in her name, it was actually her husband who was actively
managing their business. She also explained that in her
Business Permit, some portions in the “Kind of Businesgs”
section were computerized and some were typewritten because
the computer system can only input up to five lines of words,
and the rest have to be typewritten. On the matter of sourcing
out the suppliers, Casquejo explained that when the officers of
the municipalities in Davao Oriental come to them for
canvass, they take note of the items to be procured and they
will look for suppliers who can give the lowest price. 718 By
“general merchandise,” she means that they dealt with various
kinds of goods, from Nescale to bolinao, to heavy and light
equipment parts. Louievian Marketing is engaged not in
production but in marketing and merchandising. She also
disclosed that other municipalities other than Caraga would
buy from them. *'® She testified that in applving for a business
permit for her Louievian Mercantile, government officials
conducted an ocular inspection of their establishment, as
shown by the approval of the Chief of the Fire department, 20

Accused Darius O, Pelayo was next presented as witness
for Case Nos. SB-11-CEM-0236 and 0238. Pelayo served as
the Municipal Accountant of Caraga from 1993 to 2010,
Presently, he is a Municipal Councilor of Caraga.?*!

Pelayo testified that the original copies of documents,
from Disbursement Vouchers, to ROAs, and checks, were
submitted to the Commission on Audit. The Office of the
Municipal Accountant would only keep the journals and the
duplicates, if there are any.?22

For SB-11-CEM-0236, Pelayo stated that purchases
subject of this case did not follow R.A. No. 9184, because it
was not in force yet at that time. The modes of procurement

6 Idf, at 33-37
1 Exhihir @

i TEN dapced May 26, 2005 [P, pp 9-12.
119 Id. at 14-17

=0 Exhihit 53, p, 2

210 TSN dated May 26, 2005 [ P.M.), pp. 21-22,
HE LAl £3-24, 549-45.
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then were the emergency purchase, canvassing, competitive
bidding, negotiated purchase, and repeat orders. As to which
mode of procurement should be used is decided either by the
Sangguniang Bayan, the BAC Head, or by the situation or
circumstance itsell. The amount would also be considered. For
the amount involved in this case - P4,463.00 - competitive
bidding was not necessary so canvassing was resorted to. For
this purchase, Louievian Mercantile gave the lowest price,?2
There were also no complaints from the other prospective
suppliers at that time.** Pelayo explained that one of the
reasons why they would resort to canvassing instead of
competitive bidding is because Caraga is very far from Davao
and that there are no business establishments in Caraga
which ecan readily provide it with the supplies and materials
they need. The municipality is also ninety-seven [97)
kilometers away from the nearest banlk. 225

The funds for the items purchased in SB-11-CRM-0236
frice, tinapoa, corned beef. etc] were sourced from the
Municipal Peace and Order (MPOC) Fund, and were intended
for a military operation,22©

For G5B-11-CEM-0238 involving the purchase of
construction supplies, plumbing materials, grass cutter, etc.,
Pelayo testilied that ne simulation took place in  the
canvassing. A canvass was held, and they checked the records
of the suppliers, and saw that they are included in the rolls of
bidders. After verifying that the prices quoted are within the
allowable range, they chose the lowest bidder, which happened
to be Louievian Mercantile. During the BAC deliberation, they
also reviewed the credentials and documents of Louievian. 227

According to Pelayo, all the supporting documents for the
Disbursement Voucher subject of this case are in order. He
also testified to the delivery of the items listed in the purchase
order.””® He also explained that as the Municipal Accountant,
he would certify as to the availability of funds, while the
Municipal Treasurer certifies the availability of cash, the
Budget Oflicer certifies the availability of appropriation. and

204 at 24-280

224 |d, nt 25.

225 Jul. at 4748,

214 Il at 29-30

227 TEN dated May 26, 2015 (P.M.), pp. 35-27.
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the requesting official certifies as to the legality, propriety,
necessity, and correciness of the transaction. 2

Pelayo denies the allegation that he conspired with his
co-accused in the procurements suhject of these cases. He
said that it is highly improbable for him to be in conspiracy
because the disbursement process entails a lot of stages and
each stage is being handled by an officer with a unigue
mandate, and each handling officer can only stick to his fher
functions, He neither coerced nor influenced the Mayor or the
other olficers to sign the documents, and vice-versa, =

For these transactions, Pelayo said that ne notice of
suspension was given. However, the irregularities were pointed
out to them in the Audit Observation Memorandum. He was
also invited to, and attended, the exit conference called for by
Provido. He was made to believe that they were able to
convinee the COA that they complied with all the requirements
for the procurement. The general feeling after the said
conference was that they were able to meet the expectations of
the COA.%! They were also able to give Provido the additional
documents when they submitted their
explanation /compliance.?32

When asked what triggered the investigation of the COA,
Pelayo replied that it was [rom a letter of a certain Nacar
Salvador and Evelyn Ronguillo, both of which he believes to be
nen-existent. ** Pelayo also testified that as Caraga's
Municipal Accountant, there were times when he would not
sign the documents if he notices that the requirements were
not followed by the PBAC or the LGU of Caraga. In those
cases, the deocuments would no longer be forwarded to the
Mayor, but would be returned (o the requesting official. 2™

On  cross-examination, Pelayo confirmed that as
Municipal Accountant, it is his duly to certify as to the
availability of allotment, the propriety of the purpose of the
disbursement, and the completeness of the supporting
documents of each disbursement voucher.*"> When confronted

29 1, at 40-43,

g at 468-5i

“H gl at 5H.

B el at &,

. at 6l

3 [, at fbh-710
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with the Disbursement Voucher? subject of Case No. SB-11-
CRM-0236, he explained that only the price quotation
submitted by Louievian Mercantile was attached to the
voucher because it was the supplier with the lowest price. The
rest of the canvass forms were submitted to the Auditor as
part of their compliance report when they were given the Audit
Observation Memorandum 237

For the vouchers subject of Case No. SB-11 CRM-0238,
Pelayo denied that there was only one submitted price
quotation for the purchases made under each voucher. He
maintained that for each procurement, there were three
canvass forms. In one purchase, they have in fact three
suppliers: Louievian Mercantile, Davao Cathay Parts, and
Unibrus Hardware. He is not aware that Davao Cathay Parts
and  Unibrus Hardware denied participation in  their
transaction. 23% For the purchase of handset radios, Pelayvo
stated that there were three suppliers: Louievian, Narel’s
Bookstore, and Prince Educational Supply. The canvasser for
this purchase was Ruben Burgos, but someone from the affice
could have accompanied him when doing the canvass, He
could not however say who it was, 2% Pelayo again maintained
that when he signed the vouchers, he ascertained first that the
supporting documents were complete. The fact that they were
later asked to submit additional documents by the Provincial
Auditor does not mean that the supporting documents were
incomplete, but that the Provincial Auditor may need other
documents to enable him to make a com prehensive report, 240

Alicia Mori was next to testify, and stated that she
authorized the purchase of items consisting of rice, corned
beel, tinapa, etc. amounting to P4,640.00 between January 19-
29, 2001 and February 21, 2001. She admitted to making the
request, after which, it passed through the Office of the
Municipal Treasurer, and Treasurer Aguimod then referred the
matter to the Bids and Awards Committee and the Supply
Officer. She was not informed by BAC how the canvass was
conducted or who the winning supplier was, and that she has
no participation in the canvass. She came to know only that
Louievian Mercantile was the supplier when she signed the

T Exhibit 7
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Purchase Order. 2! She does not personally  know  its
proprietor, Juanita Casquejo, and has not met her, 242

According to Alicia Mori, the items purchased were
intended as aid to the military and police on operation,
because at that time, there was a presence of the New People's
Army in their town. She considered it an etnergency purchase,
and considering the price involved, necessitates canvassing
only. Alicia Mori also said that as to the disbursement
voucher, she would not have signed the same if it does not
have the signatures of the Municipal Treasurer (Aguimod) and
the Municipal Accountant [Pelayo). She also claims that noe
prejudice to the government was caused by the said
purchase, 243

Alicia Mori also statcs that the LGU is allowed to assist
the national government agencies within its municipality, as it
in fact gives honoraria to judges and prosecutors. In this case,
it only gave assistance to the Armed Forces of the Philippines
and the PNP, The groceries given for the police operation was
for a public purpose. The municipality also has ils own
Municipal Peace and Order Fund under the Office of the
Mayor, and this is where the funding for this CXpense was
sourced from.?* Alicia Mori also confirmed that these items
were delivered to her office, after which the military and police
picked it up.245

On cross-examination, it was pointed out to Alicia Mori
that there was no emergency report attached to the supporting
documents of the voucher, She replied that she “bas[ed] it only
on the documents,” 2% When asked if she is aware that
Louievian is a supplier of construction supplies, Alicia Mori
answered that there was a permit siven to Louievian stating
that it is alse involved in general merchandise. As to whether
or not cigarettes are included in an emergeney purchase,
Alicia Mori said that it is because it was needed by the
military, 247

For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0238, Alicia Mori testified that
she authorized payment for varicus construction ma terials,
LTSN dated February 20, 2017, pp 9-15.

2 jdl, ar 27-28.
M Iel. at 1620
M4 id, at 21-23.
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bush cutter, grocery, office supplies, radio with battery
chargers and motorcycle spare parts for the Municipality of
Caraga. *** She identified the signature of Pelayo as the
Accountant and Engr. Marvin Burgos of the Caraga
Waterworks Office as the requisitioner on the documents24®
and stated that she would not sign the same documents if the
required signatures of the requisitioner, the treasurer, and the
accountant and ether parties are not on it, She also said that
the supporting documents to the disbursement vouchers are
complete, signifying that the transaction is “intact " 250 She
made the same statement for the rest of the disbursement
vouchers subject of this particular case. 25!

In this case, Alicia Mori stated that the Purchase Fequest
was brought to the PBAC, which will then conduct a canvass
and look for the supplier with the lowest price. She would not
know who the winning supplier is until such time that the
documents are brought to her office. She has no participation
in the canvass. She also denied being related to Juanita
Casquejo, the proprietor of Louievian Mercantile 252

Alicia Mori also identified the private complainant in this
case, which is Evelyn Ronquillo, the maid of her sister-in-
law. 233 She again stated that all the items listed in the
purchase order were delivered. There were also ne Notice of
Suspension  or  Disallowance from COA regarding these
fransactions, 254

On cross-examination for SB 11-CEM-D238, it was
pointed out to Alicia Mori that she was the Chairman of the
Bids and Awards Committee. However, she could no longer
remember il any of the items purchased under these cases
discussed the qualifications ol the bidders who offered the
prices for the items. Alicia Mori stated that there was no
bidding held, and they instead conducted a canvass, where
they look for the lowest price availahle 255 She also confirmed
that some of the vouchers?™ were undated, except for the
checks effecting their payment.?57 Alicia Mori also reiterated

*% TSN dated February 22, 2017, pp. 4-5

20 Exhibits UL to AAA
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that no notices of suspension or disallowance was sent to
them but admitted to not knowing that the reason no such
notices was sent by COA is because there were findings
already that the transactions are illegal, 25

Jose G. Basoc was the elected Vice Mayor of Caraga for
two terms, from 1995 to 2001. As such, he served as the head
of the Sangguniang Bavan. He identified the Purchase Order2
dated February 19, 2001 for five handset radios and five
chargers. He explained that these radios would enable the
members of the LGU to communicate with each other. Basoc
also  explained thal the Provincial Law Enforcement
Communication System (PLECS) was already implemented in
the municipality, which would allow it te communicate with
other LGUs from the province, This makes the purchase of the
radios a necessity. At that time, there were still no cellphones,
and handheld radios are the only means of communication.
Basoc added that as head of the Sangguniang Bayan, he
requested for the radios in behalf of the Sangguniang Bayan
members who have no radios yet, and because his office
already has an appropriation for this particular purchase,

The Purchase Order was then submitted to the Office of
the Municipal Treasurer, which at that time, was the General
Service Office. It was the Office of the Municipal Treasurer
which purchased the radios and delivered the same to him, At
that tire, the Mumicipal Treasurer was accused Gerardo
Aguimod. He received the handset radios and signed the
Inspection and Acceptance Report. ! He received no complaint
or report of irregularity regarding the purchase of the radios,
and he was not aware that the supplier was Louievian
Mercantile, until such time that the rase was filed in Court.
Basoc was not a member of the BAC or the Committee on
Awards that facilitated the purchase, 262

When his term ended in 2001, he retarned the handset
radios to the Office of the Municipal Treasurer. In 2007, Basoc
was again elected, but as a Sangguniang Bayan member this
time, The handset radios were not mentioned. He was then

8 . an 18-22
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issued a Certificate of Clearance2? dated June 30. 2010 by the
LGU, both as Vice Mayor and Municipal Kagawad, and cleared
of any liability. 264

Basoc claims that other department heads, such as the
head of the Department of Social Welfare and Development,
the Office of the Municipal Engineer, and the Municipal Health
Office, also requested for some materials, Some of them were
also charged by the COA before the Office of the Ombudsman
for the deliveries made by Louievian Mercantile. However, it
was only him who was charged in court. 255

On  cross-examination, Basoc admitted that the
description of the item as it appears on the Purchase Request
came from him (ICOM-V68). He patterned it after the same
handset models that the local government unit is already
using. He is not aware that he has to seek permission first
from the National Telecommunication Commission, 26

When asked who the members of the Inspection
Committee were, Basoc answered that it includes the Office of
the Municipal Treasurer, whose Treasurer at that time was
accused Aguimod 257

As to the purpose of the purchase of the radios, Basoc
claims that they are for the Sangguniang Bayan officials. Their
radios will communicate with PLECS, and PLECS will be the
one to communicate with the province, He could no longer
remember who among the Sangguniang Bayan officials were
given the radios. Basoc also claims that he was not the ane
who recommended the supplier for the radios, 2@

As for his Certificate of Clearance signed by Cashier T,
ICO Arnold Samon and Municipal Accountant Pelayo, Basoc
claims that to his knowledge, Samon and Pelayo know there is
a present charge against him. He admitted that he was the one
who requested for the Certificate of Clearance, and that it was
based on his representation that he has no pending criminal
charge.?69

253 Ealyilil 1,
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During re-direct, Basoc stated thal the base of the
communication of the handset radios is the PLECS, and
PLECS has its base of operation in the province, particularly
in Mati. He is not aware who has the permit from NTC but
claims that PLECS has been in operation in Caraga even
before he became Vice-Mayor. Basoc also claims that he did
not receive any notice from COA regarding any irregularity in
the purchase of the handset radios and chargers, or any notice
of suspension or disallowance_270

Basoc also testified that the mayor at that time, Mavor
Alicia Mori, has no participation in the preparation of the
Purchase Request or even in the delivery of the items, and that
Alicia Mori came to know of the same only when the payment
was made. On re-cross examination however, Basoe admitted
that when Alicia Mori signed the check for the payment of the
handset radios, she signed the checks based on the Purchase
Request, Purchase Orders and other supporting documents,
thereby apprising her of the purpose for the issuance of the
check. 27!

SB-11-CRM-0237

The same witness, accused Darius Pelayo, was again
called to the stand to testify for the defense in Case No, SB-11-
CEM-0237. According to Pelayo, there were two sets of
catering services availed off, one in the amount of Four
Thousand Twe Hundred Pesos (P4,200.00)°72 for the Office of
the Treasurer, and the other in the amount of Twenty-Three
Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos and Sixty-Seven
Cents {P23,227.67) for the Accounting Office. It was pointed
out that if the two amounts for the catering services are
added, it would amount to more than Twenty-Seven Thousand
Pesos (P27,000.00). However, the Information for Case No. SB-
11-CEM-0237 states a different amount, which is Twenty-
Three Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos and Sixtly-
Four Cents (P23,227.64)_ 273

For the P4,200.00 disbursement, Pelayo testified that it
was requested by Treasurer Aguimod for the conference for the
turnover of the incoming treasurer. There was a re-shuffling of

I . at 4544,

278 |, at 49-52.
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treasurers going on that time and the outpoing treasurer
would turnover the office, the personnel, properties and other
equipment the Treasurer’s Office to the incoming treasurer. In
fact, the activity is entitled “Inventory and Audit of the
Physical Properties of the LGU." The Purchase Order?™ for
this called for the catering of two meals and two snacks for
lwenty persons, and was approved by the Mayvor. This
disbursement, however, did not pass through Pelayo's office, 275
Nevertheless, Pelayo avers that-the payment for this activity
was in order and allowed by the LGU whenever there are
seminars, assemblies, and conferences 27

It was also shown that Ladao did the canvass?7 for the
catering services, and this expense was charged against the
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (MOOE) of 2001
of the Municipal Treasurer.*® Pelayo explains that the meals
are necessary as support to the activity being requested.?’® He
testified that the conference took place and that the food was
received by Arnold Samson, Cashier Il of the Municipal
Treasurer’s Office. It was attended by him and around twenty
persons, including some COA personnel who were invited as
guests, 25

For the disbursement of P23,227.64, Pclayo states that
after deducting the withholding tax, the amount paid for
catering amounted to Nineteen Thousand Nine Hundred and
Twenly Pesos (P19.920.00) only. This was requested by
Pelayo’s Office for the closing of accounts from January 22-20,
2001. He explains that it is a yearly activity undertaken by the
Office of the Municipal Accountant, necessitating them to work
overtime to meet the deadline of February 14, 2001, For this
activity, their work would usually start at seven in the
morning, and last until they can still work, To enable them to
do their job well, they needed twenty-four (24) meals and
twenly-seven [27) snacks for eight people who would be
working for twelve (12} days. He confirms that the meals and
snacks were delivered. 8!

27 Exhibie HH
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The canvasser for this case was Ladao and the
documents were signed by him, the Mayor, and Treasurer
Agnimod. 2% Pelayo added that this procurement was done
through canvassing and not through competitive bidding
because the latter would be more laborious and exXpensive,
and the amounts involved here are small, such as the
P4,200.00 catering.*®3 The budget for this expense was taken
from the MOOE of their office, 254

On cross-examination, Pelayo admits that after deducting
value added tax (VAT), the amount of P4,200.00 became
P4.032.00, while P19,920.00 became P19,195.64 Adding these
new amounts, they would yield the sum of P23,227 64,285 He
also confirms that although the catering activities were done
in January 2001, the caterers were only paid on April 17,
2001.%% According to Pelayo, the canvass consists of three
caterers, However, upon checking, they found that of the
three, only one has a business permit, 27

Upon questions propounded by the Court, Pelayo claims
that he has been requesting for catering services yearly since
1993, every time there is a closing of the books. And that every
year, it was provided lor, but it was only for this case that he
was criminally charged because of 11,252

For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0237, Alicia Mori testified that
she approved two catering services, one for the Office of the
Treasurer and one for the Accountant’s Office. She could not
however recall the amounts because of the voluminous
documents she signs. ?®® She identified the signatures of
Treasurer Aguimod and Accountant Pelayo on the vouchers
and said that she signed them because all the supporting
documents are intact and legal. She also declared that she
would not have signed the papers if one of the required
signatures is lacking. " Alicia Mori also said that in this case,
there were 3 bidders for the catering, but they other two were
disqualified because they do not have business permits.?!

Ak 326-37,
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Alicia Mori testified that the catering requested by
Treasurer Aguimod was because the latter was being assigned
to Malaybalay and there will be a new Treasurer [(Jaime
Labasano]. For the catering requested by Pelayo, there will be
a closing of accounts by the accounting office. The food here
was actually delivered to the respective offices. She also does
not think it prejudiced the government because she only
looked alter the needs of the offices.”™? She mentioned that it is
customary to serve coffee to visitors and employees who are
requested to do some extra service during off hours. They can
provide food for as long as there is an appropriation for it. The
budget for these caterings were taken from the respective
budgets of the two departments, specifically the MOOE, In this
case, it was certified by the Budget Officer that there was an
appropriation for it. She also did not take advantage of her
office. 293

SB-1I-CRM-0241

Accused Ruben B. Burgos testified that he has been a
government employee from 1980 to 2010 and has served as a
Revenue Collection Clerk in the Office of the Municipal
Treasurer. He was also designated as the Procurement and
Supply Officer="* in the same office by Mayor Alicia Mori, and
acted as member of the Secretariat Services to the Committee
on Awards. His immediate supervisor was Municipal Treasurer
Gerardo F. Aguimod.

According to Burgos, he would always liquidate the cash
advances he took. He also followed the directive in their office
that before he can be granted additional cash advances, the
previous cash advances must be liquidated first. 2" Burgos
avers that the purchases that time was made by the Municipal
Treasurer’s Office, since at that time, there was no GSO in the
municipality, The checks were issued in his name because he
was the designated Procurement Officer. In making the
purchase, he would [irst prepare a canvass of prices of the
bonahde dealers. Then he would make a cash advance for the
amount indicated in the canvass, purchase the equipment or
materials being requested by the Office of the Municipal
Mayor, Municipal Accountant, Department of Agriculture, and

¥ i, at 26-28

MR at 29-30.
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DSWD, and delivered them to the respective offices. The list of
materials purchased appears in the Purchase Request,
Abstract of Canvass, and in the Acceptance and Inspection
Report, 2%

On April 4, 2001, he obilained a cash advance in the
amount of One Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Seven
Hundred Sixty Pesos (176,760.00) covered by a Disbursement
Voucher.®7 The voucher indicated that its purpose is to defray
payment of patrol car engine and spare parts, office supplies
for COMELEC office, office supplies for Mumcipal Budget
Office, and payment of remaining balance to 8SHF
Transceiver, Burgos explains that the patrol car belongs to the
Chief of Police. The materials purchased under this voucher
were indicated in the Purchase Request, which were prepared
by the heads of offices aforementioned. When asked whao
determines what mode of procurement should be followed,
Burgos replied that it is the Municipal Treasurer, who, at that
time was accused Aguimod.?% Burges also acknowledged that
he is a member of the BAC Secretariat. but not a regular
member, 292

Burgos claims that after he delivered the items to the
respective offices, he would submit the documents to the
Municipal Accountant. There were no copies of these
documents and he did not retain any copies for himself, When
this matter became subject of an investigation, he inguired
from the office of the Municipal Accountant who informed him
that they were submitted to Provincial Auditor Felipe
Provido.®® The parties then entered into a stipulation that the
vouchers and the checks were submitted to Provido, ¥

As to the six checks issued to him, Burgaos claims that he
liquidated all of them and submitted the supporting
documents to the Municipal Accountant. These include the
Liquidation Report, Acceptance Report, Official Receipts, and
Certificates of Acceptance. In particular, he claims to have
hquidated the first three checks, otherwise, he would not be
issued the fourth check, He also did not receive any notice
from COA asking him to submit additional documents, or any

M id at 12-14
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notice of suspension or disallowance.®? Neither did he hear
any complaint from any supplier who were allegedly left out in
the canvass,.303

When Burgos was asked why his cash advances were
exact amounts and were not rounded-off, he stated that the
amounts were based on the prices that are indicated in the
canvass, He was not issued a check first and buy anything,
but rather, he would have a canvass first of the items io be
bought, determine the exacl amount, and request for the
check. 3™

Burgos also testified that in making the cash advances,
he was always under the direct supervision of the Municipal
Treasurer. He also claims that the Mavor has no participation
in the first few stages of securing the cash advances, bul gets
involved only when the Disbursement Vouchers and other
documents are already presented to her for her signature, 395

During cross-examination, Burgos reiterated that in
making the purchase, he would make a canvass, take a cash
advance, and pay the suppliers directly, Thesc cash advances
also have the approval of the Mayor.?°¢ He also confirmed that
he was furnished an Audit Observation Memorandum7 dated
March 20, 2003, as shown by the signature appearing above
the name Ruben Burgps, 0%

Accused Darius Pelayo lestified for this case, and
admitted to giving cash advances to Ruben Burgos, the
designated Supply Officer, in four transactions covered by six
different checks.?™ Pelayo explained that cash advances are
not given for purchases that are subject to bidding, but is
usually given to those subject of a canvass or for an
emergency purchase to facilitate payment.39 Pelayo claims
that a cash advance is the most practical way as they could
facilitate payment for very far establishments, such as those in
Davao City., There is likewizse no bank in Caraga, and the

M2 0 at 25-41

0% 1), at 45,

™ [d, at45-47,

WS | ar 51-53

o . at 55-

7 Exhiber LD

MOTSN dated February 11, 2015, pp. 61-63
ITAN dated January 25, 2016, pp. B-9,

2 [l ak L2,
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nearest one is in Mati, which is ninety-eight kilometers away
from Caraga.?1!

According to Pelayo, a cash advance is usually initiated
by the Municipal Treasurer, and in his absence, the Supply
Officer. In this case, it was Burgos who requested for the cash
advance. Burgos then coursed his request to the Municipal
Treasurer, who determines the validity of his request, The next
step is the preparation of the Request for Obligation of
Allotment or ROA, and the Purchase Order. In the ROA, the
purpose for the cash advance is indicated, together with an
accounting code. Pelayo said that if the code is “1001°* it
refers to the Mumicipal Mayor’s Office. If it is “1091." it refers
to the Accounting Office, and “200” refers to Maintenance and
Other Operating Expenses (MOOE). 22 Once the ROA is
completed the voucher will now he prepared by the Municipal
Treasurer. It is one of the documents that Pelayo would

sign 313

One of the vouchers subject of this case is the cash
advance for the payment of patrol car engine and spare parts,
office supplies for the COMELEC Office, MBO Office, and the
remaining balance for the $33 HF process/radio, since there
are no cellphones yet in Caraga at thal time.?* He alse
identifies the purposes for the rest of the other ROAs, and
characterizes the expenses as those falling under the MOOE,
Pelayo affirms that these are all for a lawful purpose 315

Onee the documents are signed by the Mayor, the check
would be given to the payee, which in this case is Ruben
Burgos. Burgos will then encash the check with the bank and
with the money, pay for the items to be purchased. Burgos will
then be required to liquidate, Pelayo claims that he submitted
a Liguidation Report to Provido, and disputes the testimony of
Provido that there were no liquidation reports received from
them for these purchases, 216

Pelayo next identified his signature on a Certification®7
dated January 15, 2003, stating that Burgos liquidated his
cash advances in the amount of P500,000.00 plus. Pelayvo

Ml ar 19-Z0

A at 1318

A:id ar 21-22

1 Exhibit 5

"UTSN dated January 25, 2006, pp. 22-26.
Aa i, at #7-32

7 Exhibit P
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submitted this Certification, together with the Liquidation
Reports to Provide. He also submitted the Official Receipts,
but was not able to make a copy of them because there was no
photocopying machine in Caraga at thal time. He did not
receive any communication thereafter from Provido, informing
him that his Certification is incorrect. 312

On the allegation that Burgos did not liquidate his cash
advances, Pelayo contends that this is untrue, becanse as the
Municipal Accountant, he was the one who determines if a
cash advance has been liquidated, and repeated again that he
submitted Liguidation Reports to Providao, Pelaya also points
out that if the COA finds that the cash advances were not
liquidated, they should have been given a Notice of
Suspension, and if the transaction is not settled on time, it will
be disallowed. In this case however, thev received no notice of
suspension or disallowance, 319

Pelayo likewise asserts that the cash advances were
authorized, processed and released on  different dates.
However, before the next check is released to Burgos, the
previous check would already be liquidated, 220

On cross-examination, Pelayo was confronted by two
cash advances®! that were made on the same day, April 4,
2001. He stated that he does not have a copy of the liquidation
document for this, having submitted them to Provido
already. . When asked for the basis for his issuance of the
Certification dated January 15, 2003, Pelayo replied that it
was the accounting records in the Office of the Municipal
Accountant. 3

For Case No, SB-11-CEM-0241, Alicia Mori testified that
she authorized Lhe cash advances made by Ruben Burgos, the
Supply Officer for the Municipality of Caraga. The cash
advance were payment for purchases for the various
maintenance and operating expenses of the different offices in
their municipality. She identified the signatures appearing in
the documents subject of this case and stated that without
these signatures, she would not have affixed her own

HETSH dated January 25, 2016, pp. 33-35,
M9 Id, at 36-38.

2 )4, ae 41,43,

30 Exliibirs (M2 angd V1.1

2 TEN daved January 25, 2016, pip, 47418
A ddat F0-51.
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signature on the vouchers and checks. She also said that it is
her responsibility to pay all the expenses incurred in the LG
She did not participate in the purchase and canvassing and
her involvement is limited only to signing off on the payments
for the purchases, 344

Alicia Mori also disputed the allegation in the Information
that the cash advances did not specify a particular purpose,
stating that the items were for the COMELEC and other
offices, and this is reflected on the vouchers.® She also
testified that these cash advances were liquidated as shown by
the Certification issued by Pelayo. As for the supporting
documents that Auditor Provide claims to have not been
submitted, Alicia Mori reasoned that they did not receive any
communication from COA calling their attention to this and
she took it to mean that the Certification by Pelayo was duly
accepted by COA_ 336

On cross-examination, Alicia Mori confirms that the cash
advances were for the purchase of items in various offices of
the municipality, such as the water system office, the
Department of Agriculture, the Tourism Office, and the
Engineering Office. She disagreed with the prosecution that
these items should be purchased through public bidding, and
stated that the COA is not too strict so they process the
purchase through canvass, 327 She also acknowledged that the
canvass forms were not attached to the disbursement
vouchers®™* subject of this case, because these vouchers were
for cash advances.3?® She also admitted that the vouchers did
not itemize the commodities subject of the purchase 330

After the presentation of its last witness, accused Btanley
Mori, Darius Pelayo, Jose Basoc, and Ruben Burgos jointly
filed their Formal Offer of Evidence®! on May 31, 2018,

For Case No. SB-11-CRM-0235 (for accused Stanley E.
Mort and Darius O. Pelayo), it offered Exhibit Nos, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.
6, for Case No. SB-11-CEM-0236 (for accused Darius O,

4 TSN dated August 29, 2017, pp. 7-21
125 [, ap 2223,

125 |, at 25-26.

TSN dated Angust 30, 2017, pp. 24-25
W Exhibits BRE. 555, and TTT

=TSN dated August 30, 2017, pp. 26-27,
0] an 33,

" Records, Yolume VI, p 187,
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Pelayo) Exhibit Nos. 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18,
19; for case No. SB- 11 CRM-0237 [for accused Darius ©.
Pelayo) Exhibit Nos. 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30,
31,.32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40; for Case No. SB-11-
CRM-0238 (for accused Jose Basoc and Darius 0. Pelayo)
Exhibit Nos. 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, F4, 50,51, 52 53
34, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69,
1071, 72, %3, 74, 75,76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85,
86, 87, 88, 89, EI'D 91, 9.2 93, 94, 95, 95, 97, QEI. 99, 100,
102, 103, 104, 105, 106, ll'.'.l? 108, 109, 110, 111, 112. 113,
114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 122, 123, 124, 125:
for Case No, SB-11- CEM-0241 (for amuaed Dar:us O, Pelavo
and Ruben Burgos) Exhibit Nos. 126, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131,
132, 133, 134, 135, 136, and 137.

Accused Alicia Mori, on June 13, 2018, also filed her

separate Formal Offer of Evidence,??? She nffer::-:il in evidence
for case No. SB-11-CRM- 0235, Exhibit Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7,
8.9, 10, 11, 12, 13; for case No. SB-CRM- UESG, Exhibit HUE
1,2, 3, 4, 5; for case No. SB-11-CRM-0237, Exhibit Nos. 1,
A 1-8, 1-C,'23. 3. 3-8 3B, 3:C 4. 4:A 4-B, 4-(: I'mf.a-.END
SB- IIERMDESH Exhibit Nos. 1, 1-A, 1-B, 1-C, 1-D, 2, 3, 3-
A4 B, 6, T, T-A: fB?L“EﬂQAGBQLQDI{JII
11-A;, 12, 12-A, 12-B, 12.C, 13, 14, 14-A, 14-B, 15; 16, 17, 18,
18-A, 18-B, 19, 20, .EEIFL 20-B, 20-C, 20-D, 21, 22, 23, 24,
24-A, 248, 24(: 24-D, 25, 26, 26-A, 26-B, 26-C, 26-D, 27,
28, 28-A, 28-B, 28-C, 23-D. 29 30, 30-A, 30-B, 31, 32, 33,
34, 34-A, 34-B, 34-C, 34-D, 35, 36, 36-A, 36-B, SErL 37, 38,
39, 40, 40-A, 40-B, 40-C, 40-D, 41, 42, 43, 43-A, 43-B, 43-C,
43-D, 44; for case No. SB-11-CRM- 0241, Exhibil Nos, 1, 1-A,
1-B, 2, 2-A, 2-B, 3, 3-A, 3-B. 4, and 4-A.

Accused Jaime Labasano, on June 8, 2018, also filed his
own Formal Offer of Evidence. ¥ He offered in evidence for
Case No. SB-11-CRM-0235, Exhibit Nos. 1. 1- 1 -A, 1-1-B, 1-1-
Gy 1=1-D, 1% EIIFEEJAE -1-D, 2-10, 2-

! F, E F

a-

"
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2 Id, at Volume VI p. 17
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The Court, in a resolution dated July 6, 2018.%% resplved
Lia:

HANK

b} To ADMIT aceused Pelayo's Exhibit 7, 8. and
15, accused Basoc and Pelave's Exhibits 15, 44, 45,
73, B9 and 100, in the tenor that they were testificd on
by the defense witnesses, over the ohjection of the
prosecution; and

c) Ta ADMIT all the rest of the exhibits offered by
all the accused, aver the objection of the prosecution
to the purposes for the offer, but subject to the
observation made by the Court below,

L -]

A,

On October 8, 2018, Darius Pelayo, Stanley Mori, and
Jose Basoc submitted separate Memoranda for each Criminal
Case. Accused Labasano, on the other hand, submitted his
own Memorandum on October 10, 2018, while Alicia Mori
submitted her Memorandum on October 24, 2018,

THE COURT’S FINDING OF FACTS

The five {5) Informations filed against the accused in
these cases stemmed from an initially anonymous letter
complaint 335 dated August 2, 2002 sent to the Deputy
Ombudsman lor Mindanao. Later, the sender was identified as
a certain Evelyn D. Ronguillo. The letter complaint gave a
detailed account of the alleged anomalous transactions and
purchases of the Municipality of Caraga during the terms of
Mayors Alicia and Stanley Mori.

Caraga is a third-class municipality located in the
Province of Davao Oriental. From 1992 to 2001, its Mayor was
Alicia Mori, and from years 2001 to 2004, its Mayvor was
Stanley Mori.

Acting on the letter complaint, the Deputy Ombudsman
for Mindanao,** through the COA Regional Director, tasked

I |, at 99,
5 Ewhibit
e Exhibil B
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State Auditor 1l Felipe Provide to conduct a financial and
compliance audit on the complained transactions. 5

After his investigation, Provido came up with an Audit
Observation Memorandum, listing the irregularities he found
with the complained transactions. On September 17, 2003, he
sent the concerned officials of Caraga a copy of Audit
Ubservation Memorandum No. 2003-001-101 [AOM) 328 to
given them an opportunity to explain and comment on his
findings and observations. An exit conference was held by
Provido together with the concerned officials of the LGU to
discuss the said transactions and for the officials to explain
their side. Thereafter, a letter reply dated January 20, 2004 333
to the AOM was submitted by then Mayor Stanley Mori.
However, according to Provido, the explanations given failed to
justify the complained transactions.

Thus, on May 20, 2004,%0 Provido submitted the resulis
of his financial and compliance audit in a report titled “Report
on the Financial and Compliance Audit on the Complained
Transactions of the Municipality of Caraga® (Final Audit
Report). ! Attached to this Audit Report is a Summary of
Deficiencies and Irregularities #2 found on the complained
transactions, which became the basis for the filing of these
Cascs.

SBE-11-CRM-0235
Retirement of Budget Officer Calixto Ladean

On Apnl 28, 1999, Municipal Budget Officer Calixto
Ladao gave notice to Mayor Alicia Mori that he will be retiring
effective July 31, 1999343 Attached to his letter are his service
records, notice of salary adjustment, GSIS Certificate of
Clearance, Ombudsman Certificate of Clearance, SALN. and
Certificate of Clearance 4 from Caraga’s OIC Municipal
Treasurer Jaime Labasano, snd Municipal Accountant Darius
Pelayo.,

T Exhibit A
e Exhibit H
17 [Exhibie [
O Eahihic [
1 Exliihit F
H: Exhibit G
197 Exhibir K
154 Exhibyit K-7
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Un August 2, 1999, Mayor Alicia Mori sent Ladao a
computation of his retirement gratuity under R.A. No. 1616,
showing his total gratuity pay to be Four Hundred Seventy-3Six
Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos and Thirty-Five
Cents (P476,463.35).%5 Attached to this is the breakdown of
the computation®® of the gratuity pay prepared by HREM
Officer Lilma Paguyan, and approved by Alicia Mori,

It appears, however, that prior to the August 2, 1999
letter of Alicia Mori, she issued a recall order®7 on July 27,
1999 on the retirement of Ladao, stating that her
administration “is on the verge of moung towards financial
stability” and that “it is only proper and legal on [her! part as
Chief Executive to invoke [her] wide latitude of discretion, to
recall [Ladao’s| application for retirement, on the basis of (his]
performance, and the capability fo establish collaborative
teamivork among heads of office... ["3s

Alicia Mori explains that the dates between the two
documents were interchanged due to a clerical error of her
staff. According to her, the letter approving the gratuity pay of
Ladao should be dated July 27. 1999, and the recall order
letter should be dated August 2, 1999 349

From the documents presented in evidence, it appears
that even before the retirement of Ladao was recalled, Ladao
was already able to receive most of his gratuity pay through
cash advances made under the following Disbursement
Vouchers:

VBt | e [ by ARRAT

Voucher e ~ (Php).
Cash advance
1 | 101-9905-1015350 une 14, 1999 | chargeable to Gratuity Gi,000.00

|Pay

| Cash advance
2 | 101-9907-119335! July 6, 1999 chargeahle to Gratuity S0,000.00
I ) ) Pay
3 | 101-9907-1356352 1 July 22,1999 | Cash advance | 32646335

145 Exhilit 1)

Wi Exhihie [)-1

A Exhibic R

B9 ).

MPTEN dated August 8, 20165, pp-9-13,
1 Exhilit N

151 Exhibie 0

52 Exhibit P
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Tatal 426,463.35

The first three cash advances of Ladao amounted to Four
Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty-Three
Pesos and 35/100 (P426,463.35). This is still short of the
amount of Fifty Thousand Pesos to complete the total gratuity
pay of Four Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand Four Hundred
Sixty-Three Pesos and Thirty-Five Cents [P476,463.35], as
computed by HRMO Lilma Paguyan. Thus, a fourth
disbursement was made November 17, 1999 for Fifty
Thousand Pesos (P50,000.00), completely releasing the full
amount of gratuity to Ladao, as follows:

- Dishursement g : ; - Amount
Voucher | MO
Cash advance
1| 101-9905-1016 lune 11, 1999 | chargeable ta Gratuity 50,000.00
e o RS
Cash advance
2 | T01-9907-1193 July 6, 1999 chargeable to Gratuity SLRHEIRTIY
i R : e o PR
Cash advance
3| 101-9907-1254 July 22, 1999 chargeable to Gratity 326,463.35
e —_ =l T Pay
Ceirimutation of
4 | 101-9911.224275 Nov, 17, 1ogg | Liratuity Pay as 5000000
Municipal Budget
Officer |
Total 476,463,135

The signatories to the above vouchers and their
corresponding ROAs are the following officials:

ms#mzﬂﬂt ~Date | Signatories - ROA Signatories

1. Budget Officer

1. Budget Officer Calixto Ladan
June 14, Calinto Ladao 2. Mun, Accountant

1| 101-9905-1016 | 1994 2. Mun. Accountant Darius Pelayo
Darius Pelayo 3. Mun. Treasuror

| 3. Mayor Alicia Jaime Labazang

| ol Mei |

3 Exhibit -2
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2| 101-9907-1193

fuly 6, 1999 [ 2.

3 | 101-9907-1356

July 22, 1999 | 2.

4 | 101-9911-2242

Budget Officer
Calixto Ladao 2.
Mun. Accountant
Darius Pelaye 3,
Mayor Alicia
Mori

Budget Officer
Calixto Ladan
Mun. Accountant
Darius Pelavo
Mun. Treasurer
laime Labasano

Budget OHficer
Calixto Ladao 7.
Mun. Accountant

Mov. 17, 5
19949

. Budger Officer

Darius Pelayo 9.
. Mayor Alicia
Mo
==

Calixto Ladao 2,
Mun. Accountant
Darius Pelaya 1
Mun. Treasurer
Jaime Labasano

Budget Officer
Calixto Ladao
Mun. Accountant
Darlus Pelayn
Mun. Treasurer
laime Labasano

Budget Officer
Calixto Ladao
Mun. Accountant
Darius Pelayo

. Mun. Treasurer

laime Labasano

In addition to his gratuity pay, Ladao was also able to
receive his terminal leave in the form of cash advances, prior

to the recall of his retirement, as shown by the following
disbursements:

| Disbursement b s i | AMGunt
i Voueher . | - Date it

: Cash advance of . "

1 1(]1-'-]91]5-1'!?{%'}-"-“_ ] "r'_-'laj.f_Iﬂ. 1_':.'9‘.’-1_ terminal leave A6,973.97
|2 101:9906-1135% | june 28, 1999 f;ﬂa{r’__f'e”‘““”m“‘“] 27,039.18
Tatal 64,013.15

Meanwhile, Ladao continued to serve as Caraga’s Budget
Officer and continued to receive his monthly salaries and

allowances, 256

By 2001, Mayor Alicia Mori already served three terms as
Mayor. Her husband, Stanley Mori, ran for elections and won
as Caraga’s new Mayor. A few months afier assuming office,

¥4 BEvhibit M
155 Exhibit L
s Exhibie ¥
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Stanley Mori was mformed by Vice-Mayor Samuel Domingues
that the Sangguniang Bavan will be investigating the matier of
retiretnent of Ladao, to which Stanley Mori gave permission.
On October 1, 2001, The Sangguniang Bayan issued a
Committee Report *7 with the following findings:

1. That the disbursement of Mr. Ladao's retirement
benefits was not in accordance with CSC rules and
regulations based on the opinion of the CSC Fegional
Director:

2. That those people behind the disbursement are
likewise accountable xxx;

3. That Mr. Ladao is committed to pay back the amount
collected upon retirement.

Based on these findings, the Sangguniang Bayan
recommended that:

1. Mr. Ladao be made to pay in full the amount he had
claimed as retirement benefits;

2. That the settlement of the same be done with the
Municipal Treasurer and same shall serve as a
Compromise Agreement to be signed by Mr. Ladao,
and that no clearance shall be issued by the
Municipal Treasurer upon the retirement of Ladao, as
the same is a requisite for [the| GSIS claim, without
first settling in full the amount he collected in
advance,

On January 6, 2003, as Ladao was about to approach
the mandatory retirement age of sixty-five (65), he again gave
notice of his retirement to Mayor Stanley Mori, stating that he
would be retiring on March 6, 2003, and this time, he would
be retiring under R.A. No. 8291.55% On same date, January 6,
2003, a Certificate of Clearance was issued to Ladao, stating
that Ladao “made a full and complete accourntmg of funds and
praoperties for which he is accountable or responsible.,, 735 Iy
was signed by Municipal Accountant Darius Pelayo, Municipal
Treasurer Gerardo Aguimed, and Mayor Stanley Mori,

157 Exhibic 5
T Fxhihit T

59 Exhibit 11




Decision

Peoyla v M, of ol

SE-11-CRM-0235 to 0230, & 0241
Page 62 of 10

e e L L ....---_--—-—----._......--hI

As the gratuity pay advanced by Ladao remain unpaid
even after he retired, the Sangguniang Bayan of Caraga passed
Resolution No. 5430 on August 18, 2003. The Resolution
stated that Ladao has opted this time to retire under BA, No,
8291 and left behind the unpaid amount of P476,463.35. It
then authorized Municipal Treasurer Aguimod to collect the
said amount from Ladao.

Shertly thereafter, on September 17, 2003, Auditor
Frovido gave Mayor Stanley Mori the Audit Observation
Memorandum %1 which noted that the gratuity pavment
remain unpaid, and that there were other deficiencies and
irregularities involved in the disbursements of his cash
advances. On December 9, 2003, Mavor Stanley Mori wrote a
demand letter®? to Ladao for the payment of the gratuity pay.
Ladao replied in a letter dated December 17, 2003%2 that he is
unable to pay back the gratuity pay advanced, as the
retirement benefits he received from GSIS amounted only to
P343,181.28, which is insufficient to cover his liabilities.

As of the filing of this case, Ladao is already deceased. 36+

SB-11-CRM-0236
Purchase of Grocery Items from
Louievian Mercantile

Un January 19, 2001, Mavor Alicia Mori made &
Purchase Request™ for the following items to be delivered to
the Office of the Municipal Mayor:

e . Mems ' _ Quantity
1 | Rice | Zsacks¥s 0
| 2 | Corned Beef - 1 dozen
|3 | Tinapa [Assorted) - 2 kilos
| 4 | Daing R | 2kilos
5 | Bolinaog — . . Zkils
6 | Mescafe (100 grams) T  bpacks
7__| Sugar (brown) N, 3 kilos =
8 | Battery [AA) , bpieces
0 Exhibit W
I8 Exhikit H
it Exhihit W
283 Exhibic X
=4 Records, Volurme (1, 117
5 Bxhilsit A%

"% This later on became three (3} sacks of rice in the Purchase Crder and succeed ing documents,
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9 _|[ Cigarette (Hope, Winston) [ tream
10 | Noodles {Assorted) S 3 dozens

| 11 | Rubhing Alcohol = - _ 1bottle

For this Purchase Request, Disbursement Voucher No.
101-0102-05316 % was processed for the amount of Four
Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty-Three Pesos (P4.463.00),
Attached to the Disbursement Voucher are the check payable
to Louievian Mercantile, a Charge Invoice dated F ebruary 23,
2001 enumerating the same items sold to the Municipality of
Caraga, the ROA indicating the obligation as “supplies.” the
aforementioned Purchase Request, the Abstract on Canvass,
two Canvass Forms, and the Purchase Order.

The Absiract of Canvass™S reflects only the prices of the
items as quoted by Louievian Mercantile. It was signed hy
Ruben Burgos as canvasser, Mayor Alicia Mori as requisitioner
and Chairman of the Committee on Award, and Treasurer
Aguimod and Accountant Pelayo as members of the Committee
on Award.

As to the two Canvass Forms attached, only one form?5°
was filled up with prices quoted by Louievian Mercantile. The
other form bears the signatures of Mayor Alicia Mori and
Treasurer Aguimod, but was left in blank as to the prices of
the items and the name of the hidder /supplier. 370

The items were delivered to the Office of the Mavor and
An Inspection Report®™! was signed by Alicia Mari, Burgos, and
Aguimod. The Acceptance Report,*? on the other hand, was
signed by Utility Worker Blas Andoyo. According to Mori and
Pelayo, there was an ongoing police/military operation in
Caraga at that time to combat the presence of the NPAs in the
area. These items/supplies subject of the dishbursement
vouchers were given to the police/military.

Auditor Provido, in his AOM,*7 gbserved that Lonievian
15 a non-existing business enterprise and that the conduct of
canvass was merely simulated. In response®™ to this, Mavor

7 FExhibir 7

#E Exhibit BR
A Exhibir BE-1
10 Exhibic BR-2
1 Exhibit D[
% Exhibit EE
5% Bxhibit H

1% Exhibit [

1l
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Stanley Mori furnished furnished Provido a copy of Lhe
Business Permit of Louievian Mercantile, together with its
Certificate of Registration and Barangay Clearance. To dispute
the allegations of Provido that his ocular inspection of the
purported address of Louievian at #20 L. Ma. Guerrero Street,
Louievian's proprietor Juanita Casquejo explained that it was
mside a compound and could not readily be seen from the
streets, as i1l was being partly blocked by G.M. Press, a
business establishment owned by her son,

SB-11-CRM-0237
Catering Services

On .January 19, 2001, Municipal Accountant Darius
Pelayo made a Purchase Request™™s for catering services to be
provided to them for the Closing of Accounts that his office
performs yearly. This was approved by Mavor Alicia Mor. For
that year (2001), it was held from January 22 to 29 at the
Accounting Office of the Municipality of Caraga. According to
Pelayo, this activity would entail him and his staff to work
overtime to meet the deadline of February 14, 2001.

The Abstract of Canvass?® shows that there were three
suppliers who gave their price quotations for 24 meals and 27
snacks for 8 persons, with RV Eatery giving the lowest price,
Attached to the Abstract are the three Canvass Forms da Lel
January 19, 2001 377

=

Bt RV Eatery J&B Eatery | Mabandos Eatery
Per Tatal Per Moal Tortal Pier Meal Tutal
Meal (Php) [Fhp} {Fhp) [Php} (Fhp)
(Php) S - s o
24 Meals for 8 | 70.00 | 13,440.00 7200 13,824.00 75.00 L4, 0300
PETSONS o . e PN S Yo o
7 Snachks for 8 | 30.00 | 6.480.00 120 6,912.00 3500 7.560.00

| persons |

Total 19,920.00 20,7360 21.960.00

The Local Bids and Awards Committee (LBAC) issued a
Certilicalion®*® dated January 15, 2001 that the only licensed
catery in the Municipality is RV Eatery, and the other caterers

A% Exhibit MM
¥ Exhibit 00
T Bxhibedr 001 ro 062-3
M Exhihit Qp
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who participated in the canvass/bidding are disqualified for
not having the necessary permits and licenses. The
Certification was signed by LBAC Members Ladao, Aguimod,
Felayo, and approved by Alicia Mori, BV Eatery was then
chosen as the caterer,

The Purchase Order®™ was then signed by Aguimod and
Alicia Mori, and the meals and snacks were delivered to the
Accounting Office, as signified in the Acceptance Reports0
signed by Pelayo.

On Aprl 16, 2001, Disbursement Voucher No, 101-0104-
0966 was made for the amount of Nineteen Thousarid Nine
Hundred Twenty Pesos (P19,920.00), which, after the
deduction of Value Added Tax. became Nineteen Thousand
One Hundred Ninety-Five Pesos and Sixty  Four Cents
(F19,195.64) as payment to RV Eatery for the catering services
during the January 22 to 29, 2001 Closing of Accounts.
Attached to it are the ROA signed by Pelayo, Ladao, and
Aguimod. a check in the name of RV Eatery owner Rebecca
Latorre, and an RV Eatery Sales Invoice, 292

The second transaction under this Information is the
catering services requested by Treasurer Aguimod through
Purchase Request dated February 19, 2001. This was for a
Conference of all Treasury Officers. The attached Activity
Design®® describes the activity as the turnover of the assets,
liabilities and properties by the outgoing treasurer to the
incoming treasurer, and includes the conduct of mventory of
properties/supplies, an audit of financial resources and the
reconciliation of all cash and bank records.

The Abstract of Canvass™ (with the Canvass Formsis
attached) shows that RV Eatery is the still the supplier with
the lowest price quote, as shown below, and was chosen as the
provider of catering services:

LERBEE RV Eatery __J&BEatery | Mabandos Eatery
Per Tatzl Pei Meal | Taotal Per Meal Total
Meal {Php) (Fhp) | {Php) (Phpi {Php} |
| [(Php) | - | oo ot Y|
% Exbuilit MM
T Exhibie PP
18 Exhihie 1L
2 Exhibit LL-1 to LL-3.
I Exhibit 11
i Exhibit 1)

05 Exhibits -1 to )3

_{u
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2 Meals for 20 | 70. uuTzauu 00 | 7200 | 288000 [ 7500 | 3,000.00
_persons

Total 4200000 4 36000 4,.520.,0)

A Purchase Request™ dated February 21, 2001 was then
made for the above meals, which were l:lr_-lwered 87 1o the Office
of the Treasurer. On April 17, 2001, Disbursement Voucher
No. 101-0104-0965%% was processed for the amount of Four
Thousand Thirty-Two Pesos (P4,032.00) (P4,200.00 less VAT)
as payment to RV Eatery, Attached to the voucher are the ROA

signed by Apuimod and Alicia Mori, the RV Eatery Sales
Invoice for P4,032.00, and the check whose amount was
P4,200.00), 382

In sum, the amounts disbursed under the two vouchers
subject of this Information are as follows:

| Disbursement Voucher No. Date | Amount (Php)
i 101-104-0965 | April17,2001 | 40320090

2 101-104-0966 | April17,2001 | 1919564
Total 2322764

S8-11-CRM-0238
Various Purchases from Louievian
Mercantile

There are eighl transactions subject of this Information,
all of which involves the purchase of items from Louievian

Mercantile, as the supplier offering the lowest price. These are
as follows: _

|

2 Snacks for | 3500 | 1,400.00 | 37.00 | 148000 | 3800 ‘ 1,520.00
(] persons ' | =

; HER I Amount | Amount after
nﬂ“mf Hﬂ':t - Particulars _{.ﬁ#_mrﬂ,ﬂir____ VAT deduction
: i i | [Php) . (Php)
I | 101-0102-0511 Faj,-'ml:nLuF
SHEY Construction materials | _ﬂ'? E;E"D“ b 94'55

#=0 Exhibit HH

=7 Exhibit KK, "Acceptance Report” signed by Arneld H. Samson

m Exhibit FI?

e Exhibvits FF-1 b FF-3

"™ The chech isswed pursuant to this voucher indicates the amount of P4,200.00.

i
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for Spring Development

101-0104-1024

Bush Cutter for vse in
the Office of the

101-0102-0515

at

Municipal Engineer
supplies  for use
Tourism Office

4 | 101-0103692

L6, 700040

16092.73

2.480.00

2,480,003

Payment of mﬂtuwﬁ;le
spare parts for RHU
Office .

101-01013-701

| Office of the Municipal
_Engineer

Payment far Mnt:::ru:-,.fr:ﬁ
Spare  parts  for  two
motorcycles  ar the

4,584.40)

4,714.50

101-01012-
151 /39

101-0102-0296

Payment of Purchaszes

Payment of supplies for
use in the Office of the
Mayor

tor use in the Office of
the Sangguniang Bayan
(handset radinos and
chargers)

446300

9.235.88

45430649

4,463.00H

69,375.00

101-0116-1757

Payment of Materials
used in the Municipal
Health Building

322560

‘Total

160,328.50

66,852.27

2.108.30

154,569.80

In Provide’s Audit Report, 5 he concluded that the
canvassing for these transactions were simulated as the other
suppliers canvassed certified that they did not participate in
any bidding or canvass, or that they do not produce or supply
the items being purchased, Other suppliers also turned out to
be fictitious. The findings per voucher are summarized as

follows:

g

 Amount
| Canvassed :

e !Sﬁépilei'}’_ﬂl_iﬁhﬁ'

Loutevian Mercantilo

49.786.00

Irregularities Noted
i | DV No. 101-0102-06117% s
 (Construction materials for Spring Development)

No 2" supplier

10N VAT deducked

| No 3 supplier

Mo canvase forms attached, and
Abstract of Canvass shows only one

supplier

"7 The check issued however |5 the cost ol the spare parts hafore VAT deduction, or P4, 714,50,
I This is the same voucher transacton subject of 3B-11-CRM-0236
T N VAT deducied.
™5 Exhibdt F

v Exhihir 1)
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5 : OV No. 101-0104-10245%7
(i (Bush Cutter for the Office of the Municipal Engineer)
Louievian Mercantile 16, 700.00
Davao Lathay Parts and | 17500000 | Certification®® from Rogelio "Boy”
Hardware, Inc. Yan of Davan Cathay states that they
have not participated in any bidding
or canvass conducted by the
Municipality of Caraga, and that the
| signatures appearing in the canvass
Farms are not his signature nor that of
his authorized representative,
Unibrus Hardware LES00.00 | Could not be located or identified

DV No. 101-0102-051 5399

£ (Supplies for use at Tourism Office) a
Lovievian Mercantile 248000 | o
Na 20t supplier Two extra canvass forms were
altached, but they were blank
Mo 3 supplier
" DV No. 101-0103-652 30
- (Motorcycle spare parts for RHU Office)
Louievian Mercantile 958440 |
Davao Cathay Parts and | 10,210.85 | Certification™ from Rogelio "Roy”
Construction Supplies Yan of Davao Cathay states that they |
have not participated in any bidding
or canvass conducted by the
Municipality of Caraga, and that the
signatures appearing in the canvass
forms are not his signature nor that of
his authorized representative.
Unibrus Hardware 10,723.60 | Could not be located or identified
DV No. 101-01013-701402
5 [Spare parts for two motorcycles at the Office of the Municipal Engineer]
Louievian Mercantile 4,714.50 HNo VAT deducted on the check issued
to Loulevian
Davan Cathay Parts and | 4,942.00 Certification*" from Rogelio "Boy”
Canstruction Supplies | Yan of Davao Cathay states that they

1% Exhibit BRE
i Exhibit TT
¥ Eyvibit HHH
0 Ehihit MNN
1 Supra,

" Exhibit TTT
40T HehibicTT

~£=%
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i [ 'have not participated in any bidding |
or canvass conducted by the
Municipality of Caraga, and that the
signatures appearing in the canvass
forms are not his nor that of his
authorized representative.
“]-JEEIHI%-HHHWEFE 5.0 ?ﬁﬁ] N Enul(r l!H-'H [es |Dl:at4;dﬂ-r-|d|;nm:il.?d
6 ' : DY No. 101-01012-05 1640+
[ [Payment of supplies for use by the Office of the Mayor)
Loulevian Mercantile 4463.00 |
Miy 2nd Supplier | An extra canvass form was attached
| but it was in blank. The Abstract of
Mo 3 Supplier Lanvass also show only one supplier
7 - DV Nu. 101-0102-0296 %5
: ~_(Handset radios and chargers)
Loufevian Mercantile | 69,375,000
Marel's Bookstore, Inc. 7837500 | Certificationos from Narel's
proprietor Juanita Fernandes, that
they did not participate in any bidding
or canvass, and that any signature
therein is not hers or that of her
representative. She added that their
store does not sell handset radios ar
chargers.
Prince Educational B3.550.00 | Certification™’ from proprietor |
Supply Minerva Sy, that they did not
participate in any bidding or canvass,
and that any signature therein is not
hers or that of her representative. She
added that their store doees not sell
handset radios or chargers.
3 DV Ne. 101-01016-175710 i
5 __(Materials used in the Municipal Health Building)
Louievian Mercantile 3,225.60
Unibrus Hardware | 5.860.80 | Could not be located or identified
New Kings Hardware | 5,869.60 | Could not be located or identified

1 Exlibit XXX
15 Exhibit IO
a6 Exhilbic TT-1
W7 Exchibit TT-2
e Exchibrit [

_Y
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During the exit conference, it was made known to the
accused that some of the suppliers denied participation in the
canvass/bidding. In the written reply/compliance submitted
by the LGU officials, they presented photocopies  of
Certifications of Narel's Bookstore “° and Davao Cathay
Parts 410 both stating that they participated in the bidding and
canvass for the purchases made by the Municipality of

Caraga.

Provido’s findings also state that Louievian Mercantile
has no permit or license for the line of business it is engaged
in, He noted that in the *Kind of Business® portion of
Louievian’s Business Permit,*!! the computerized section only
slates:

“Dealer of Gen. Merchandise such  as light/heavy
equipta..-‘uarls,’mnﬁt.]nilis,.-'ﬂl]ppliesfpiumhingfagri-
prods/ sup/reflectorized traffic signs /"

After this part, the following entries were no longer in
computerized form but only typewritten, and appear to have
been inserted or added only:

"EWD's traflic signs, bailey pancls & accessories, electrical
appliances and supplies, office supplies & cquipment,
printed forms, textile materials & sporting good, concrete
products, lumber w /o yard, sand & gravel & other dry goods,

products & grocery goods & supplies.”

To address this, Juanita Casquejo, proprietor of
Louievian Mercantile, explained thal this was because the
compuler system for the business permit would only accept a
limited amount of lines/characters, hence the rest had to be
Ly pewritter,

On the finding of Provido that Louievian has no physical
business establishment, he presented photos*? taken during
his ocular inspection of the purported address of Louievian,
showing that only a “G.M. Press” could be found on the said
address. To this, Casquejo stated that her son owns G.M.
Press and that Louievian is inside the compound, but is not
visible from the street where Provido took pictures.

"1 Hxhibit 43
e Exhilbit 44
41 Exhikit RR
M3 Exhibyir 55-1
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SB-11-CRM-024]
Unliguidated Cash Advances

In Audit Observation Memorandum No. 2003-001-101
dated March 11, 2003%'* and Audit Observation Memorandum
No. 2003-002-101 dated March 20, 2003.414 both addressed to
Municipal Accountant Darius Pelayo, Provido noted that there
were several cash advances made by Ruben Burgos that had
not yet been liquidated, in violation of Section 179 of GAAM,
Vol. 1 and COA Circular No. 97-002 dated February 10, 1997,

The following Disbursement Vouchers and their
corresponding checks disbursed the total amount of Five
Hundred Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy Nine Pesos and
Thirty Centaves (P500,879.30) to Ruben Burgos:

Disbursement | Particulars Check No. |  Date Amount
| _Voucher No. i . . (Fhp) |
1| Unnumbered*'® | Cash advance to 55,729.00

defray paviments of
varinus purchase
uged in the Office of
the Mayor, Account,
DA and MEWD

2| Unnumbered™® | Cash advance to 02325447 | April 4, | 176,760.00
defray payments of | 2001
Patrol car engine and
spare parts, office
supplies of COMELEC
Office and MBO, and
pavment of
remaining balance of
a55 HF Transceiver

3| Unnumbered® | Cash advance to 0374881 f:mm. 132,990.30
defray paymentsof | 2001 o _—
various maintenances | 37489420 | June 13, 38.400.00
and other operating 2001 [ I
expensesofthe | (37490 | June 13, | 50,000.00 |

"1 Exhibit QOO
U4 Exhihir 0
"1" Exhibit RRRR. No corresponding check was attached, but the AOM indicated that it was Check Na.
015334,

1EE Exhibit 5555

11F Exhibit 5555-1

w2 Exhibit TTTT

2 Exhibiit TTTT-2

A4 Exhibic TTT-3

1 Exhibic TTTT-4

Inl
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4! Unnumbered®? | Cash  advance to | 02325593 April 4, | 47.000.00
| defray  pavments of 2001
gasoline, motorcycle
spare parts, Lite Ace
spare parts, used in
the Dffice of the
Sanggpuniang Bavan of
Caraga S | -
| I/ | Total | 50087930

A Certification®® issued by Pelayo dated January 15,
2003 states that Ruben Burgos has liquidated the above cash
advances, in accordance with the provisions of Section 89 of
P.D. 1445, Despite the said Certification, Provido maintains
that the above cash advances have not heen liguidated.
Burgos, on the other hand, claims that he submitted his
liguidation reports and documents to Pelayo, and Pelayo
insists that he has submitted these to Provide. Pelayo also
claims that he does not have duplicates of the documents
because there is no photocopying machine in Caraga at that
time, and the nearest photocopying machine is in Mati, a town
three hours away from Caraga, 25

ISSUES

Whether or not all the named accused in SB-11-CRM-
0235 to 0238 could be criminally and civilly liable for violation
of Section 3(e) of R.A. No. 3019, and

Whether or not all named accused in SB-11-CEM-0241
could be held criminally and civilly liable for vielation of
Section 89, in relation to Section 128 of P.D. 1445,

RULING

The first four charges against herein accused (SB-11-
CRM-0235 to 0238) are all violations of Section 3(e) of R.A. No.
3019, under which the following elements must concur for one
to be found guilty:

172 Exhibar YWy

i3 Exhihir -1

Y4 Exhibit PPPP

== TaN daled October &, 20015, po 38,
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L. The accused must be a public officer discharging
administrative, judicial, or official functions:
2. The accused must have acted with manifest partiality,
evident bad faith, or gross inexcusable negligence: and
3. His/her action caused unmdue injury to any party,
mclading  the Government, or pave any party
unwarranted benefits, advantage, or preference in the
discharge of his/her functions. 320

This Decision will separately discuss the presence or
absence of the above elements for each case. Given the fact
that Calixto Ladao already passed away prior to the filing of
this case, his criminal liability would no longer be discussed.

SB-11-CRM-)235
Retirement of Budget Officer Calixto Ladao

For the first element of Section 3fe), R.A. No. 3019, it is
undisputed that all six accused in this case are public officers
discharging their official functions at the time of the
commission of the crime. Alicia B, Mori was the Municipal
Mayor of Caraga when Ladao first gave notice of his retirement
in 1999, while Stanley E. Mori was Municipal Mavor when
Ladao finally retired in 2003. Darius Pelayo was then the
Municipal Accountant and Jaime Labasano was the QIC
Municipal Treasurer. When Ladao retired in 2003, the
Municipal Treasurer was already Gerardo Apuimaod.

For the second element of the offense, this Court finds
that the prosecution was able to show that accused Alicia
Mori, Ladao, Pelayo, and Labasano took advantage of their
official positions when they, through manifest partiality,
evident bad faith, or gross inexcusahle negligence, authorized,
granted, and released the retirement gratuity pay of Ladao on
July 31, 1999, although his retirement was recalled by Mayor
Alicia Mori on July 27, 1999, [t should be emphasized that the
amounts released to Ladao were released as cash advance
payments of which will be chargeable to his gratuity pay. By
allowing Ladao to advance his retirement benefits and charge
the entire amount later to his future receivable constitutes
manifest partiality.

In the case of Sison v, People of the Philippines, 7 the

0 Reyves w People, GR Mos 17 7105-100, Augast 12, 2010,
MG Wos, 17033 and 1703%99-403,9 March 2010, G114 5CEA 670,

)
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Court explained what partiality, bad faith and gross negligence
mean in the context of Section 3(e] of R.A. No. 3019;

“Partiality is synonymous with bias which excites a
disposition to see and report matters as thev are wished for
rather than as thev arc. Bad faith does not simply connote
bad judgment or negligence; il imputes a dishonest purpose
or some moral obliquity and conscious doeing of a wrong: a
breach of sworn duty through some motive or intent or ill
will; it partakes of the nature of fraud. Gross negligence has
been so defined as negligence characterized by the want of
even slight care, acting or omitting to act in a situation
where there is a duty to act, not madvertently but willfully
and intentionally with & conscious indifference (o
consequences in so far as other persons mav be affected, It
18 the omission of that care which even inattentive and
thoughtless men never fail to take on their own property, 42

In this case, the Court finds that accused Alicia Mori,
Ladao, Pelayo, and Labasano, acted with evident bad faith and
gross negligence when they signed the ROAs, Disbursement
Vouchers, and checks, for the advance payvment of the
retirement gratuity pay of Ladao. This Court notes that Ladao
elected to retire under R.A, No. 1616, where the law gives to
the retiree his retirement benefits in two parts: 1) the gratuity
pay, to be paid by his last employer, which in this case is the
Mumcipality of Caraga, and 2} the refund of his premiums, to
be paid by GSIS. However, regardless of what retirement maode
or scheme Ladao elected to retire, he becomes entitled to his
retirement henefits only upon his actual retirement,

In the case at bar, Ladao signified his intention to retire
from government service effective July 31, 2009, A month
before this however, he was already receiving portions of his
retirement gratuity pay -- first on June 14, 1999, then on July
b, 1999, and on July 22, 1999. It needs to be pointed out that
the release of the gratuity pay to Ladao is illegal, not because
his retirement was recalled by Alicia Mori, but because on
June 14, 1999, July 6, 1999, and July 22, 1999, Ladao is not
vet entitled to receive these benefits. With all more reason
should the fourth payment on November 17, 1999 be
disallowed, because at that time, it was already certain that
Ladao would not be retiring anytime soon, as he in fact
continued serving as Caraga’s Budget Officer until 2003. Yet
all these disbursements of funds were made possible because
Ladao himsell, accused Alicia Mori, Pelayo, and Labasanno

20 b, citing Feracier v. Sendigarbayon, G:R, No, 50691, 5 December 1994, 230 SCRA 655,
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signed off on the ROAs, Disbursement Vouchers and checks
payable to Ladao,

The illegality of this payment was certainly not lost on
the accused. as shown by Municipal Treasurer Labasano
asking permission from Alicia Mori to consull with Provincial
Auditor Veronica Lawas. The fact that he saw the need to refer
to an auditor indicates that he knows the payment to be, at
the very least, irregular. lrrespective however of whatever
verbal advice the Provincial Auditor gave to Labasano, which
advice this Court can neither ascertain nor confirm, the act of
allowing the release of payment to Ladao remains to be illegal.
This Court eannot likewise give any credit to the justifications
given by Municipal Accountant Pelayo that there was already a
definite computation from the HRMO of the amount of gratuity
to be received by Ladao, and a definite date of retirement.
Anything less than actual retirement from service will not
entitle one to receive his or her retirement benefits. The
evident bad faith of accused was established by the mere fact
thalt they knew Ladan has not yet retired., but they already
allowed him to collect his retirement pay. As Municipal
Treasurer and Municipal Accountant, Labasano and Pelayo
also pught to know that retirement benefite are not allowed to
be  cash-advanced wunder existing auditing rules and
regulations.

There is also eviden!t bad faith and gross inexcusable
negligence on the part of Mavor Alicia Mori when she simply
signed the documents for the release of retirement gratuity
pay, for the reasons that she 1) signs voluminous documernts
on a daily basis and that she 2) relied on the presence of the
signatures of her department heads. While a head of office has
the right to presume regularity in the conduct of duties of her
subordinates, her duty to give final approval to any matter is
far from ministerial. Although she is not expected to go down
to the nitty-gritty of every document she signs, the clear
import of the particulars appearing on the face of the
disbursement vouchers alone should have put her on notice
that the purposes for the disbursements are illegal. In this
case, Lhe hirst three vouchers were described as “cash advance
chargeable to Grotuity Pay.” At that time, Alicia Mori knows
that Ladao has yet to retire and is not therefore entitled to any
gratuity pay. The [ollowing testimony of Alicia Mori shows that
she fully knows that the payment of gratuity pay is not one of
the items allowed to bhe cash-advanced.

!



Decision

Peopie v Mard, e af,
SH-11-CRM-0Z35 o 0238, & 0241
Mage Th of [

e e o e R B S e e e 2 -—

PROSECUTOR BOCO-MATE:

O

THE WITNESS:
A

-

ATTY AQUING:

Now, you also testified vesterday that you
glojt mad upon learning that Calixin
Ladao cash advanced his retirement
benefits and gratuity pay, is that correct?

Yes, ma'am.

Because you knew that it 15 not legal to
cash advance retirement benefits, is it
not? You glojt mad because vou knew
that it is not legal to cash advance?

DEJEL‘HGH, Your Honaore, that is calling for
a conclusion of law, Your Honors.,

JUSTICE DE LA CRUZ:

Feform.

Why did you get mad?

FROSECUTOR BOCO-MATE:

)y
THE WITNESS:
A:
LS
A

On the third element of causing undue injury to the
government, 1t 15 the contention of accused Pelayo that no
damage was caused to the government, because Ladao was
only givenn what was due to him under the law. Under R.A. No,

Why did you get mad vpon learning that
the accused Ladao cash advanced his
retirement benefits?

Galit na galit ako, ma'am, sa kanya kasi
yurl nige, dong mga nag-cash advance siya
no doapat hindi.

50, vou would agree with us that the
retirement  benefits  cannot be  cash

advanced, is that correct?

Yes, ma'am 129

15 TEN datod Augest B 2006, pp. Le-17.

ik
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1616, the Municipality of Caraga is supposed to pay Ladao the
amount computed according to the number of total creditable
service of Ladao. In addition to this, Ladao should also receive
from GSIS the refund of the premiums he paid. At the time he
was supposed to retire in July 31, 1999, his gratuity pay
already amounted to P476,463.35. However, since he extended
his service to March 2003, Pelayo believes that Ladao’s
gratuity pay should even be more than this, Ladao, however,
no longer collected from the LGU this additional gratuity pay.

While it may be true that Ladao was not able to collect
the full gratuity pay due him, this does not mean that no
injury was sustained by the government in 1999, Pelayo
himsell mentioned that the Municipality of Caraga was a
third-class municipality, and that a one-time release of
gratuity pay to Ladao would result to a disruption of the
municipality’s cash flow, thereby implying that the
municipality does not have a lot of cash on hand. Tt is
precisely for this reason that it becomes even more important
that disbursements are made only for those obligations that
are already due and demandable. When the retirement
gratuity pay was prematurely released to Ladao years ahead of
his retirement, the Municipality of Caraga was effectively
deprived of the use of its funds. As pointed out by the Court
during Pelavo’s testimony:

ATTY. AQUING (to WITNESS DARIUS PELAYO):

£ Tell us directly, why did you or the LGU
allow Ladao to collect cash advances
through the voucher mode for the months
of May, June, and July belore his
retirement dated in July?

A Because there was already a definite dare
of retirement, sir. 8o, i order (o facilitate
the payment, in order to refraim also from
paying.. because of the limited cash that
the LGU had during that time, that is
wh.,,

AJ PONFERRADA

You mean Lo say, because of the limited
cash, vou paid in advance Mr. Ladao? We
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cannot see the logic of that ha If the
municipality has limited cash, they will
pay  something which is not yet an
obligation, and not reserve it for all
obligations? ls that what vou are telling
us?

WITNESS

Your Honor, what | am telling is that, in
order to [acilitate the payment of his
gratuity pay, the cash flow of the
municipal government is so important,
because we are |a] third class LGU, and
thenm we were to pay in bulk the
F400, 000,00 in one month, that would
affect the financial condition of the
rranicipality,

Ad PONFERRADA!

S0 because the epash flow iz wvery
mmportant, you paid in advance what is
nol yel an obligation of the municipal
povernment, and did not reserve it for the
obligations of the municipality? s that
what you are saying? No logic!

CHAIRMAN:

With more remson that yvou should not
pay it because your cash flow will not
allow it, right?

Al PONFERRADA;
Preciscly, 430

Further, any availment of retirement benefits under R.A.
No. 1616 requires that the employer or the office of the retiree
first pass the necessary appropriation law from its savings;

Section 1. Scction Twelve of Commonwealth Act Numbered
One Hundred Eighty-Six, as Amended, is hereby further
amended by adding two new paragraphs after paragraph (a)
which reads as follows:

XHM

“lc) Retirernent is likewise allowed to a member, regardless of
apge, who has rendered at least twenty vears of service. The
benefit shall, in addition to the return of his personal

TSN dated Detober &, 2015, pp. B4-35.
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contributions plus mterest, be only a gratuity equivalent o
one month salary for every vear of service, based on the
highest rate received, but not 1o exceed twenty-four months.
This gratuity is payable by the emplover or office concerned
which is hereby authorized 1o provide the necessary
appropriation or pay the same from savings in its
appropriations.” (Emphasis supplied)

There being no showing that an appropriation law was
passed by the Municipality of Caraga for purpeses of allocating
funds for Ladao’s retirement, Ladao could not be entitled to

any gratuily pay.

As for accused Stanley Mori and Gerardo Aguimod, the
Court finds no liability on their part. The offense of taking
advantage of their office and causing injury to the government
was already consummated and completed when the gratuity
pay was released to Ladao. Stanley Mori, who became Mavor
after this payment was completed, and Aguimod who replaced
Labasano as Municipal Treasurer, have no participation in the
release of the retirement gratuity pay.

SB-11-CRM-(1236
Purchase of Grocery Rems from
Lovtevian Mercoaniile

The transaction subject of this Information and one of
the eight transactions under Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-
00238 refer to one and the same disbursement of fund. They
both involve the same Purchase Request dated January 19,
2001, Disbursement Voucher No. 101-01012-0516 for the
amount of Four Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty-Three
Pesos (P4,463.00), Charge Invoice dated February 23, 2001,
and the Abstract of Canvass with the two Canvass Forms
attached. Both Case Nos. SB-11-CEM-0236 and SB-11-CREM-
0238 allege that the accused public officials took advantage of
their positions and committed the crime through manifest
partiality, evident bad faith, and gross inexcusable negligence
by disbursing funds to Louievian Mercantile for the purchased
items, without conducting a canvass of at least three
suppliers/conducting simulated biddings, thereby causing
undue injury to the government.,:

There being an identity of causes of action between the
two Informations filed, and with public policy being firmly set

"ﬁ:.ﬁ ‘
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against unnecessary multiplicity of suits, the Information in
Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-0236 is DISMISSED. The
Court will make its pronouncement as to this disbursement
only in Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-D238,

SB-11-CRM-0237
Catering Serivices

For the first element of Section 3e), R.A. No. 3019, it is
again undisputed that all four aceused in this case are public
officers discharging their official functions at the time of the
commission of the crime. Alicia B. Mori was the Municipal
Mayor of Caraga and Ladao was the Municipal Budget Officer
when the disbursement was approved, and Darius Pelavo was
then the Municipal Accountant and Gerardo Aguimod was the
Municipal Treasurer who requested for the catering and
approved the payment for the same as well.

For the second element of the offense, this Court finds
that Alicia Mori, Ladao, Pelayo, and Aguimod took advantage
of their official positions when they, through manifest
partiality, evident bad faith, or gross inexcusable negligence,
requested for the catering, and authorized the disbursement of
funds as payment for the said catering services in the amount
of Twenty-Three Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos
and Sixty-Four Cents. (P23,227.64),

In this case, there was no irregularity noted as to the
canvassing ol the suppliers for the meals and snacks, or in the
determination of the supplier that gave the lowest price quote.
What the COA objected to was the purpose for which the
catering services were procured. For the catering services
requested by accused Pelayo, he claims that it is for the meals
and snacks to be consumed by his staff at the Municipal
Accountant Office while they render overtime work as they
close the accounts of the LGLU for the yvear 2000, On the other
hand, the catering service requested for by accused Aguimod
was for the meals and snacks to be consumed by his staff
from the Office of the Municipal Treasurer as they conduct the
inventory and turn-over the office to the incoming Municipal
Treasurer. However, as correctly pointed out by COA Auditor
Provido, these activities comprise the regular duties and
functions of the employees of their respective offices for which
they arc already compensated for, through their salaries and

o
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overtime pay. There is no provision in law that entitles them to
meal and snack allowances for these activities. As the
Municipal Budget Officer, Accountant, and Treasurer, accused
Ladao, Pelayo. and Aguimod ought to know that catering
scrvices are not among the allowable expenses that can be
sourced from Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses
[IMOOE) of their respective offices, or from any available fund
of the LGU. It was therefore manifest partiality, evident bad
faith, and gross inexcusable neglisence on their part to
request for such services, and approve the payment therefor.

Alicia Mon shares equal responsibility as well for sgiving
final approval to the purchase request and the subsequent
disbursement of funds to pay for such services, knowing fully
well that these expenses are not authorized by any rules or
regulation. The Court cannot give merit to her defense that she
merely relied on the signatures of her subordinates on the
purchase documents, as she was clearly apprised of the
purposes ol the said disbursements on the face of the
documents she sighed. As held by the Supreme Court in the
case of Alfonso v. Office of the President,®’! a head of office
cannot reasonably rely on the regularity of the performance of
duties of his/her subordinates when he/she already has
knowledge of an irregularity in the transaction, which in this
case, she readily could have gathered from the purposes of the
disbursements indicated in the documents.

As lor the third element of undue injury to the
government, it was clearly shown that the Municipality of
Caraga sustained the damage to its funds in the amount of
Twenty-Three Thousand Twe Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos
and Sixty-Four Cents. (P23,227.64), when it was disbursed
from the funds of the municipality for an unauthorized
purpose,

SB-11-CRM-0238
Various Purchases from Louievian
Mereantile

As in the previous cases, the first element of Section 3(e)
of R.A. No. 3019 has been established, it not being disputed
that all the accused in this case, with the exception of accused
Juanita Casquejo, were public officials at the time of the

MG RL Mo, LS0091, April 2, 2007, 520 SCRA 6.
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commission of the offense. Accused Casquejo, although a
private individual, is charged as a conspirator in the present
case,

For the second element of Section 3{e), R.A. No. 3019,
this Court finds accused Alicia Mori, Pelayo, Ladao, Aguimod
and Basoc to have taken advantage of their office and acted
with manifest partiality, evident bad faith, and gross
inexcusable negligence when they conducted simulated
biddings for the purchase of the items subject of this case.

This case involves eight fransactions, covered by eight
disbursement vouchers, for the purchase of wvarious office
supplies, construction supplies, a bush cutter, dry goods and
groceries, motorcyele spare parts, and handset radios with
chargers, In all these transactions, the mode of procurement
resorted to was not bidding bul canvassing, where the
canvassers looked for the lowest price possible for each
item. *32 However, out of the eight transactions, three
transactions appear to have only one supplier -- Louievian
Mercantile -- instead of the required three suppliers. These are
the following:

Amaunt Amount after

Jd___________ |orsping Bevelopment
2 | 101-0102-0515 Supplies  for use al
Tourism Office

£,480.00 2. 480,00

Disbursement | partieulars | before VAT | VAT deduction
B A P i (Php) _(Php).
1 | 101-0102-0511 Payment of
Constrection materials 49,786,000 47, 794.56 i

3 | 101-01012- | Payment of supplies for
05164 use in the Office of the
Mayor {groceries given | 44634010 4. 403,005
to the PNP/Philippine |

Army)

It must also be noted that the last two transactions from
the above table did not deduct the required amount of VAT
from the total payment made to the Louievian. For these three

transactions, the supporting documents show that there is
only one canvass form*® attached per disbursement voucher,
all from Louievian Mercantile, The prices indicated in these

452 TAN dated August 30, 2007, pp. 7-1L

11 Mg VAT deductsd

19 This i8 the same voucher/transaction subject of 58-11-CRM-0236
125 Mo VAT deducted

136 Exhibits WW-1, [|J-1, and ZZI-1.
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canvass forms were replicated in the three Abstracis of
Canvass,** which does not show any other prices from other
suppliers. These Abstracts of Canvass were signed by Ladao
and the members of the Committee on Award, namely,
accused Alicia Mori, Aguimod., and Pelayo. The manifest
partiality, evident bad faith, and gross inexcusable negligence
of accused Alicia Mori, Ladao, Aguimod, and Pelayo were
unmistakable when they proceeded to sign the Disbursement
Vouchers, despite their knowledge that there was only one
supphier canvassed and not three.

Pelayo claims that there were really three suppliers
canvassed, and that all three canvass forms, per disbursement
voucher, were forwarded to the COA Auditor. In the absence of
any evidence to support this claim, the Court cannol give
consideration to the same. It must alse be mentioned that in
Disbursement Voucher No. 101-01012-0516, a seccond
canvass form?*® was attached, but the same was in blank, and
does not indicate any quoted price by any supplier. Despite
the said canvass form being blank, it was still signed by
Aguimod, and “approved” by Alicia Mori.

Alicia Mori, on the other hand, contradicts the statement
of Pelayo and acknowledged that there was only one supplier
canvassed and not three. However, she reasoned that for
Disbursement Voucher No, 101-01012-0516 in particular, the
purchase of dry goods and . groceries was actually an
emergency purchase. Nevertheless, mno Certificate of
Emergency Purchase or any evidence in support of this elaim
was produced. Moreover, providing the Philippine Army or the
PNP with grocery supplies just because they were stationed in
Caraga at that time can hardly be considered an emergency.

For the remaining five transactions, the supporting
documents for each disbursement voucher would show three
price guotes from three suppliers. However, upon verification
conducted by COA Auditor Provido, it was found that three
suppliers did not actually participate in the canvass or bidding
for anv procurement by the Municipality of Caraga. The
owners and proprietors of Davao Cathay Parts and Hardware,
Inc., Narel’s Bookstore, Tne., and Prince Educational Supply,
all executed Certifications that they did not participate in the
said canvass and disavowed any signatures purporting to be

137 Bychibits WW, |]), and ZZ2
Wb FExibit ZEE-2.

Mo



[hecisinn

Pecprle v. Marl, ef al
SB-11-CEM-0235 tp D238, & D241
I:'.'lgr B4 ol 1

theire on the wvouchers’ supporting documents. Narel's
Bookstore and Prince Educational Supply, which were made to
appear as suppliers in the procurement of handset radios,
further stated that they do not sell these items in the first
place.

In addition, two more purported suppliers, Unibrus
Hardware and New King's Hardware, could not be located or
identified.

When these matters were brought to the attention of the
accused through the Audit Observation Memorandum, they
replied by giving Certifications®™" purportedly executed by the
proprietors of Narel’s Bookstore and Davao Cathay Parts and
Hardware, Inc., both stating that they participated in the
canvass and bidding for the purchase of supplies by the
Municipality of Caraga. These Certilications, however, are
mere photocopies. In any case, no explanation was provided as
to the claim of Narel’'s Bookstore and Prince Educational
Supply that they do not engage in the sale of handset radios,
or the whereabouts, location, or existence of Unibrus
Hardware and New King's Hardware. There is therefore good
reason for this Court to believe that these canvasses were
indeed simulated just to comply with the rule that there must
at least be three suppliers canvassed. The simulated canvass
for these purchases shows the evident bad faith of the accused
who signed on the disbursement vouchers and their
supporting documents, allowing funds to be disbursed.,

Although it would appear that Juanita Casquejo,
proprietor of Louievian Mercantile, was benefited [rom being
chosen as the supplier with the lowest price for the items
purchased, absent any evidence of conspiracy between her
and the accused public officials, her criminal liahility under
Section 3(e) of R.A. No. 3019 cannot be established. It cannol
likewise be said that her business establishment is a fictitious
one, having shown the necessary permits granted by the LGU
of Davao for its operation. As to its physical location, the same
was adequately explained by Casquejo in her testimony that
Louievian Mercantile was located at the inside of the shop, and
its existence could have heen easily ascertained had Provido
inquired from G.M, Press.

The third element of undue Injury to the government was

19 Exhibils 43 and 44,
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met when funds were disbursed for these transactions,
without the proper bidding or canvass required by law,
Without a canvass of at least three suppliers, the government
was deprived of the opportunily to procure these items at
betier terms or prices,

SB-11-CRM-0241
Unliquadated Cash Advances

Accused Alicia Mori, Gerardo Aguimod, Calixto Ladao,
Darius Pelayo and Ruben Burgos are being accused of
violation of Section 8O, in relation to Section 128 of P.D. No.
1445, Section 89 and Section 128 provide:

SECTION 89 [Limifations on Cash Advance, — No cash
advance shall be given unless for a legally authorized specific
purpose. A cash advance shall be reported on and liquidated
as soon as the purpose for which it was given has been
served. No additional cash advance shall be allowed to any
official or emplovee unless the previous cash advance given
ta him is first settled or & proper accounting thereof is made

SECTION 128. Fenal Provision. — Any vielauon of the
provisions of Sections 67, 68, 89, 106, and 108 of this
Code or any regulation issucd by the Commission [on Audit]
mplementing these sections, shall be punished by a fine not
excecding one thousand pesos or by imprisonment not
exceeding six (&) months, or both such bne and
imprisonment in the discretion of the court.

The provisions of the law are straightforward and leave
little room for interpretation. An employee who has made cash
advance shall report and liquidate the same as soon as its
purpose has been served. COA Circular 97-022 further
provides:

4.1.2 No additional cash advances shall be allowed to any
ollicial or employee unless the previous cash advance given
to him is first settled or a proper accounting thereol is made.

In this case, there are [four Disbursement YVouchers for
the cash advance of various purchases and payments, totaling
Five Hundred Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy Nine Pesos
and Thirty Centavos (F500,879.20), as shown below:

| Dishursement | Particulars | CheckNo. | Date |  Amount |
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1| Unnumbered™ | Cash advance to February | 55,729.00
defray payments of 22
various purchase 21441
used in the Office of
the Mayor, Account, |
DA and MWD
2| Unnumbered*? | Cash advance to 0232549 April 4, | 176,760.00
defray payments of 2001
Patrol car engine and
spare parts, office
- supplies of COMELEL
Office and MBO, and
payment of
remaining halance of
555 HF Transceiver
3| Unnumbered** | Cash advance to 02325515 | April 4, 47.000.00
defray payments of 2001
gasoline, motorcycle
spare parts, Lite Ace
spare parts, used in
the Office of the
Sangguniang Bayan of
Caraga | il
4| Unnumbered® | Cash advance to 03748847 | June 13, | 132,990.30
defray payments of 2001
various maintenances | 037489% | June 13, 38,400.00
and other operating | 4001 o
expenses of the 03749049 | June 13, S0,000.00
Municipality 1L R
J. | e Total | 500,879.30

The six checks issued pursuant to the four Disbursement
Vouchers were all issued in the name of Acting Supply Officer
Ruben Burgos, who admitted to encashing the same, arnd
using the money to pay for the expenses and purchases
indicated in the Dishursement Vouchers. According to Burgos,
he already submitted his liguidation reports to Municipal

W0 Exhibit RRER, Mo corresponding check was attached, but the AOM Indicated that it was Check No,
115334

"1 Date Found in Audit Observation Memorandom No. 2003-001-101
%3 Exhibit 5555

1 Exliibit $555-1

A Exhibie VWY

5 Exhibit VWWVV-]

4+ Exhibyit TTTT

4t Hyhikit TTTT-2

1 Exhibit TTTT-3

3 Exhibsit TTTT-4

Ty
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Accountant Pelayo, otherwise, he would not have been given
subsequent cash advances. Further, on January 15, 2003,
Pelayo issued a Certification stating that Burgos’ cash advance
totaling P500,879.30 had already been hqudated. Burgos,
however, did not have receiving copies of the documents he
allegedly submitted.

ATTY, AQUINO:

0 Inspection Report and official receipts,
Where did vou submit these documents?

A To the office of the Municipal Accountant,
Sir.

0 Ohriginal?

A Yes, Sir.

i How many original copies of these
documents?

A It's only one (1)

O One. No xerox?

No Xerox copy, sir.

(W3 You did not retain xerox copies for
yourscl{?

A Mo, 1 don’t have.

£ You don't retain documents in the

Treasurer's Office?

Al Mone, sir.

0J: Why? What office has the custod|y| of the
records?

A Because [ submitted it already, all

documents to the office of the Municipal
Accountant, sir.

() When these decuments or when this
check was the subject matter of the
investigation, did you verily from the office
al the Munmcipal Accountant what
happened to the documents?
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A They said they already submitted it to the
office of the Provincial Auditor which is
Mr. Felipe Provido, !

Municipal Accountant Pelavo also claims that he
submitted the liguidation documents to Auditor Provido, but
he also did not retain any receiving copies or duplicates of the
documents.

ATTY. AQUINO:

95 [rt this Certification, you mentioned Mr,
Burgos had liguidated the three (3)
transaction mentioned in pars. 1, 2, and
3, do yvou have copies of the Liquidation

Reporta?
A They are with Mr. Provido, sir.
(- Yo mean YOLL submitted this

Certification” to Mr. Provido, you also
submitted the Ligquidation Reports?

The original copies, sir.

% The originals are with Mr. Provido?

At Yes, sir,

L5 You also have duplicate copies?

Az MNone, sir.

Q: Why? What are the contents?

A: Official receipts, sir.

Q: The official receipts, vou don't have
duplicate copies?

M We don't have, sir.

) You had machine copier at that fime?

A Mone, sir.

Ch But you still gave these copies to Mr,

Frovido?

¥ TER - daled Fehimaary 11, 2015, pp.23-24,

)
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i Yes, sir 45

Notwithstanding the statements of Burgos and Pelayo
and the Certification by Pelayo, COA Auditor Provido stands
firm that there had been no liquidation on the said cash
advances. It is for this reason that he sent an Audil
Observation Memorandum on March 11, 2003, and a second
Audit Observation Memorandum on March 20, 2003, In his
possession are only the four disbursement vouchers, the four
ROAs, and the six checks, all of which were presented as
evidence, Since no other supporting documents could be
shown by the accused, the Court can only rely on what
evidence are at hand, which are the vouchers, ROAs, and
checks presented by the prosecution. From these, the only
conclusion that can be drawn was that funds were indeed
disbursed, and that these were received by Burgos. As to
where the money was spent on, no official receipt, Acceptance
Report, or Inspection Report could be shown by the
accountable officers. In the absence of any evidence presented
by the accused, this Court could not give weight to the bare
claims of Burgoes and Pelayo that the P500,879.30 had been
liguidated.

In People v. Sandiganbayan,*s? the Supreme Court made
the following pronouncement:

[Tjhe mere failure to timely liguidate the cash advance is
the gravamen of the offense. Verily, the law secks 1o
compel the accountable officer, by penal provision, Lo
promptly render an account of the funds which he has
received by reason of his office. (Emphasis supplied)

From the table above, it can also be noticed that the six
checks were released in three separate dates, with two checks
from two separate disbursement vouchers being issued on the
same date of April 4, 2001. It would therefore be near
impossible for Burgos to have liquidated the cash advance for
the payment of the patrol car engine and spare parts, eLc.
before he was given the subsequent cash advance for the
pavment of gasoline and motorcycle spare parts, etc, The same
could be said for the three checks issued successively on the
same day of June 13, 2001. These go against the rule that no
cash advance should be given unless the previous cash

LTSN dated Janueary 25, 2016, pp. 34-35.
#52 GIL Mo, 174504, March 21, 2011
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advanced has been accounted for.

Alicia Mori, who stands accused here for allowing the
cash advances to be released to Burgos, invokes the defense of
gond faith, stating that she relies on the regularity of the
documents before her and the presence of the required
signature of her department heads, It must be recalled,
however, that whenever Burgos makes a cash advance, he
conducts a canvass of prices first so he would know the lowest
price for the item to be purchased. This is also how he comes
up with the exact amount to be requested in the vouchers and
checks. Il presupposes, therefore, that when a disbursement
voucher is presented to Alicia Mori, there should already be an
Abstract of Canvass or canvass forms attached. Since there
are no Abstract of Canvass or canvass forms present here,
Alicia Mori could not claim that she signed the vouchers in
good faith.

FROS. BOCO-MATE:

(i By signing these disbursement vouchers,
vou also write the purposes for which
these cash advances will be used, 1s it
not?

WITNESS (ALICIA MORI):

A Yes, ma'am.

Q) Now would you agree with me that
purchases of items for the municipality
should be conducted through public

bidding, is it not?

A COA before is not o strict  so we
observed it by canvass.

N By canvass?

Yes, ma'an.

XXX

0: These disbursement vouchers pertain to
the cash advance granted 1o Ruben
Burgog, is it not?

A Yes, ma'am.

oy
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X And Ruben Burgos wused the cash
advance to purchase items for your oflice,
[or the DA's office, and what olher oflice,

15 1t not?

A After the canvass, ma’'am.

) Mow could you tell us if the canvass is
attached L thiese disbursement

vouchers?
COURT INTERPRETER:

For the record, the witness 18 going over
Exhibit RER and series, 555 and series,
TTT and series.

PROS. BOCO-MATE:

) ¢ there? There is none? Is it not Mayor
Mori that there were no canvass sheets or
abstract of canvass atlached to this
disbursement voucher, is it not?

JUSTICE CALIDCOMNA:
Please answer Lhe question.
WITNESS:

A No canvass attached, ma'am. *53

The absence of these Abstracts of Canvass and canvass
forms should have put Alicia Mori on notice that there are
irregularities in the disbursements being requested. Further,
she also acknowledged that the purposes indicated in the
vouchers were not indicated with particularity and did not
itemize the supplies to be purchased. In particular, some
vouchers indicate that it is for the “payment of various
maintenance and other operating expenses of the Municipality
of Caraga,” % or “office supplies or Comelec office, office
supplies of MBCQ office... ."# These violate the rule that no
cash advance should be allowed unless it is for a specific
purpose, 5

1 TEH dated Augost 30, 2017, pp. 25-27.
1 Exhibit TTTT

155 Exhibkit 8555

vae Sartion 1.1 of COA Circular Mo, 97-002,
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Civil Liability

As a rule, any person held criminally Hable is also civilly
liable. %57 Criminal liability will give rise to civil liability only if
the act or omissions results in damage or injury, in this case,
to the government. In the context of Section 3(e) of R.A. No.
3019, the undue injury caused to the government is equated
to the civil law concept of actual damage.** Thus, as held by
the Supreme Court in Llorente v. Sandiganbaan: 59

Unlike in actions for torts, undue imjury in Sec. 3e) cannot be
presumed even after a wrong or a violation of a right has been
egtablished. [ts existence must be proven as one of the elements of
the crime. In fact, the causing of undue injury, or the giving of any
unwartanted benelits, advantage or preference through manifest
partiality, evident bad faith or gross inexcusable negligence
constitutes the very act punished under this section, Thus, it is
required that the undue infury be specified, quantified and
proven to the point of moral certainty.

In jurisprudence, undue inpury is  consistently  interpreted as
actual damage. Undue has been delned as more than necessary,
not proper, jor] illegal: and imury as any wrong or damage done to
another, either in his person, rights, repulation or property|;that
ig, the| mvasion of any legally protected interest of another. Actual
damapre, in the context of these definitions, is akin to that in civil
law.

In oo, actual or compensatory damages is defined by Article
2199 of the Civil Code as follows:

Art. 2199, Except as provided by law or by
stipulation, one 5 enbted W an  adequate
compensation only for such pecuniary loss sulfered
by him as he has duly proved. Such compensation is
referred tooas actual or compensatory damages,

With respect to Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-0235_ a
total of Five Hundred Forty Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-
Six and Fifty Centavos (Php 540,476.50) was disbursed as

cash advance payments to Ladao, broken down as follows:

E Partieulars [ - Amount (Fhp)
1 | Total Gratuity Pay prematurely given to Ladao 476,463.35 _
2 | Total Terminal Leave payments 6401315

¥ Rontera v, Peaple, GR No, 167 546, [uly 17, 2009,

il Spnboy v, People, G Ho 161877, March 23, 2006, 485 5CRA 185, 197 Ser albso Unortey, People, GR, o
169251, December 20, 2006, 511 SCRA 477, 490

350 Phit G20 1550),
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Total 40,476.50

It was shown by the prosecution that the above amounts
should not have been given to Ladao, since he was not vet
entitled thereto at that time, However, it must be noted that
Ladao did eventually retire, and as a retiree, he is entitled to
his gratuity pay under REA No. 1616, and payment for his
unused terminal leaves.

With respect to the payment of his terminal leaves
amounting to Php 64,013.15, there was no evidence presented
to show that he should not be entitled to the commutation of
his terminal leaves at the time of his actual retirement. Thus,
while the same was prematurely given, Ladao was nevertheless
entitled to the same. The only undue injury here is that the
Municipality of Caraga was deprived for a time of the use of
the said amount of money by disbursing the same without yet
being due and demandable. However, the prosecution offered
no reasonable basis by which the Court can measure this
specific injury, and could noet thus be quantified by the Court
for purposes of imposing civil liability.

With respecct to his gratuity pay under RA. No. 1616,
Ladaos would have been entitled to the same, had the
requirement of R.A, No. 1616 for the availment of this mode of
retirement been followed. The law requires that the retiree’s
employer must first pass the necessary appropriation to allow
the payment of gratuity pay from its savings. In this case, it
was not shown that an appropriation existed in 1999 when
gratuity payvments were cash advanced to Ladao, or even in
2003 when he finally retired. Without this required
appropriation, it is established that Ladae is not entitled to the
oratuity payments at all, and could only retire under other
retirement schemes such as E.A. No. 8291, which would not
require the Municipality of Caraga to disburse money.

For allowing the disbursement of gratuity pay to Ladao
when there is no legal basis for the same, accused Alicia Mori,
Pelayo, and Labasano, are jointly and severally liable to return
the amount of Four Hundred Seventy-Six Thousand, Four
Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos and Thirty-Five Cents (Php
476,463.35), with the legal interest rate of 6% per annum?°
from finality of judgment until the same is fully paid.

0 Pegme v Solohedding, G Noo 206291, Jenudry 18, 2016,

L
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For Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-0237, the
prosecution was able to prove that the amount of Twenty-
Three Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos and Sixty-
Four Cents [Php 23.227.64) was dishursed from the public
coffers, itemized as follows:

e Particulars : ~ Amount (Php)
1 | Catering Eurw::{' for the Turnover of Assets to the 4.032.00
| Incoming Treasurer 1
_ E_J_ Catering Service for the Closing ol Accounts | 19.195.64 |
Taotal: 23,227.64

Such disbursement was shown to have been made
without any legal basis, as the purposes for the catering
services are without any anthority of law or regulation. For
this, accused Alicia B, Mori, Pelayo, and Aguimod should be
jointly and severally liable for the return of this amount to the
Municipality of Caraga, with an interest of 6% per annum from
finality of judgment until fully paid.

For Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-0238, the
Municipality of Caraga suffered undue injury when it
disbursed funds for purchases that were not subjected to
proper canvass and/or bidding. The eight disbursements in
this case amounts to One Hundred Fifty-Four Thousand Five
Hundred Sixty-Nine and Eighty Cents (Php 154,569.80), which
amount needs to be restituted back by accused Alicia B. Morti,
Darius . Pelayo, Jose (G. Basoc, Gerardo F. Aguimod and
Juanita Casquejo, with an interest of 6% per annum from
finality of judgment until fully paid.

Amount after VAT
| Particulars deduction (Php).
1 Fay menl nf D‘.-n'-'.tl uction ITJd’[ETiEII‘S for Spring 47.794.56
| Development o ekl
2 | Bush Cutter for use in the Ofice of the 16.092.73
Municipal Engineer I
| 3 | Supplies for use at Tourism (fice 2,480,001
4 | Payment of mn’rm*ryc:le spare parts bor ILHL 9915 88
| Office Fral -
5 | Payment for Mulnrc].'l:le_ spare parts h:u:: qu 45416
motorcycles at the Office of the Municipal

1 M VAT deductad
I The check issued howerer 15 the cost of the spare parts helore VAT deduction, or P47 1450,

&
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6 | Payment of supplies lor use in the Office of | 4.463.00%
___| the Mayor b :
7 | Payment of Purchases for use in the Office of
the Sangguniang Bavan (handset radios and 66, 854.27
chargers) o o
B | Payment of Materials used in the Municipal $ 10830
| Health Building = !
. ~ Total 154,569.80

Although Casquejo is acquitted of the criminal charge
against her for not having been found to be in conspiracy with
the accused public officials, thus failing to prove criminal
liability bevond reasonable doubt, she remains civilly liable. It
is well-settled that civil liability is not extinguished by
acquittal from criminal charges, when acquittal is based on
reasonable doubt and not insufficiency ol evidence.*™ In this
case, Casquejo is jointly and severally liable with her co-
accused for the return of the sum disbursed, it having been
established that she was the supplier chosen for the items
purchased, which were subsequently disallowed by the COA,

For Criminal Case No. SB-11-CRM-0241, it was proven
that the total amount of Five Hundred Thousand Eight
Hundred Sevenlty Nine Pesos and Thirty Centavos
(P50(,879.30) was not liquidated at all, and this sum of money
remains to be accounted for.

Particulars Amount (Php)

1 | Cash advance Lo defray payments of various 55,729.00
purchase used in the Office of the Mayar,
Account, DA and MSWD

2 | Cash advance to defray payments of Patrol car - 176,760.00
engine and spare parts, office supplies of
COMELEC Office and MBO, and payment of
remaining balance of 555 HF Transceiver

3 | Cash advance to defray payments of various '_ - 13299030
maintenances and other operating expensesof | 3840000
the Municipality ; 50,000.00

' 4 | Cash advance to defray payments af gﬂﬂnﬁne. 47,000.00
motorcycle spare parts, Lite Ace spare parts, used

in the Office of the Sangguniang Bayan vf Caraga

A Mo VAT deducted.
W4 Lim v, Mindaman Wine arg Liguer, GHE Mo 175851, July 4, 200 2
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Total: S00.879.30

Although the above sums were disbursed for an
authorized purpese, it was not shown that these were indeed
used to pay for the expenses aforementioned, and in the
absence of any official receipt, or other supporting documents,

this sum

of money should be returned to the coffers of the

municipality.

WHEREFORE, in view of the foregning, this Court
renders judgment as follows:

L

In Criminal Case No, SB-11-CEM-0235, the Court
finds accused Alicia B. Mori, Darius O. Pelayo, and
Jaime D. Labasano, GUILTY beyvond reasonable
doubt, and thus scntenced to suffer the
indeterminate penalty of imprisonment for six (6
yvears and one (1) month, as minimum, to ten [(10)
vears, as maxmum and perpetual disqualification

from public office, lor violation of Section 3(e) of R.A.
No. 3019;

Accused Alicia B. Mori, Darius O. Pelayo, and Jaime
D. Labasano, are also jointly and severally hable to
return the amount of Four Hundred Seventy-3Six
Thousand, Four Hundred Sixty-Three Pesos and
Thirty-Five Cents (Php 476,463.35), with the legal
interest rate of 6% per annum from finality of this
Decision, until the same is fully paid;

For lack of any participation inm the pre-mature
release of the retirement gratuily pay ol Calixto
Ladag, this Court ACQUITS accused Stanley E.
Mori and Gerardo F. Aguimod of the charge against
them. The act or omission from which their civil
liability might arise does not exists;

In Criminal Case No. SB-11-CEM-0236, the
criminal charges against all accused are hereby
DISMISSED, as the transaction complained of is
E!.:ll"l'i-l'li].}' mcluded in the charpes under Criminal
Case No. SB-11-CEM-0238:

In Criminal Case No. 5B-11-CEM-0237, the Court
Ends aceused Alicia B. Mori, Dariue O. Pelayo, and

!
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Gerardo F. Apuimod GUILTY boyond reasonable
doubt, and thus sentenced to suffer the
indeterminate penalty of imprisonment for six (6)
vears and one (1) month, as minimum, to ten (10)
years, as maximum and perpetual disqualification
from public office, for violation of Section 3(e) of R.A.
No. 3019,

Accused Alicia B. Mori, Darius O, Pelave, and
Gerardo F. Aguimod are also jointly and geverally
Hable to return the amount of Twenty-Three
Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Seven Pesos and
Sixty-Four Cents (Php 23,227.64) with the legal
interest rate of 6% per annum from finality of this
Decision, until the same is fully paid;

4, In Criminal Case No. 8B-11-CEM-0238, the Court
finds accused Alicia B. Mori, Darius O, Pelayo, Jose
G. Basoo, and Gerardo F. Aguimod GUILTY beyond
reasonable doubt, and thus sentenced to suller the
indeterminate penalty of imprisonment for six [6]
yvears and one (1) month, as minimum, to ten (10)
years, as maximum and perpetual disgualification
from puhblie office, for violation of Section 3(e) of R.A.
No. 3019, and ACQUITS Juanita G. Casquejo of the
charges against her for lack of any finding that she
conspired with the accused public officers.
Notwithstanding her acquittal, Juanita G. Casquejo,
and her co-accused, Alicia B. Mori, Darius O,
‘Pelayo, Jose G. Basoe, and Gerardo F. Aguimod are
also jointly and severally liable to return the amount
of One Hundred Fifty-Four Thousand Five Hundred
Sixty-Nine Pesos and Eighty Cents [Php
154,569.80),with the legal interest rate of 6% per
annum from finality of this Decision,until the same
is fully paid;

In Criminal Case No. SB-11-CEM-0241, the Court

finds accused Alicia B. Mor, Darius O. Pelayo,
Ruben B. Burgns, and Gerardo F. Aguimod GUILTY
bevond reasonable doubt, of vielation of Section BO
in relation to Section 129 of P.D. No. 1445, and is
hereby sentenced to pay a fine of One Thousand
Pesos (P1,000.00) with subsidiary imprisonment in
case of insolvency and to return to the Municipality

Y
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of Caraga the amount of Five Hundred Thousand
Eight Hundred Seventy Nine Pesos and Thirty Cents
(PS00,879.30) representing unliguidated  cash
advances, with interest of 6% per annum from
finality of this Decision until fully paid.

11 the service of their sentences, the duration of the total
imprisonment for each accused shall not exceed forty (40]
years, 65

As o accused Calixto Ladao, notice was given to this
Court of the fact of his death through the Returns of Arrest'®®
by the arresting officers and the accompanying Death
Certificate No. 2008-05067 .47 Thus, insofar as accused Ladao
is concerned, the cases against him are DISMISSED as death
extinguishes criminal liability.

With respect to accused Gerardo F. Aguimod, and in view
of the testimony of his co-accused that he has already passed
away, %% the prosecution is directed to verify the said
information and to submit to this Court the Death Certificate,
if any, of the accused,

In view of the acquittal of accused Stanley E. Mori and
Juanita G. Casquejo, their cash bonds are hereby ordered
released, subject lo the usual accounting and auditing
procedures. Moreover, the Hold Departure Order dated July 4,
2011 is SET ASIDE and declared functus officie, only as to
Stanley E. Mori and Juanita G. Casquejo.

S0 ORDERED.
Quezon City, Metro Manila, Philippines,

GE%% FAlTH A. ECONG

Associate Justice

W Apbcke 7O, RPL-

i i, pt 199 and 119

s Il 1175

TSN dated October 5, 2001509,
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WE CONCUR:

EFREN N{ DE LA CRUZ
Associate Justice
Chairperson
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ARDO M ONA

—T1 Associate Justice

ATTESTATION

I attest that the conclusions in the above decision were

reached in consultation before the case was assigned to the
writer of the aopinion of the Court's Division,

EFREN N, DE LA CRUZ

Assoclate Justice
Chuairperson
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CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13, of the Constitution,
and the Division Chairman's Attestation, it is hereby certified
that the conclusions in the above decision were reached in
comsultation before the case was assigned to the writer of the
opinion of the Court’s Division.

Presiding JTistice



